D.8.10 Transcript from the Tucson International Airport Air Guard Station
Public Hearing Held February 23, 2012, in Tucson, Arizona
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THE AIR FORCE PUBLIC HEARING AND COMMENT

SESSION was taken on February 23, 2012, commencing at

6:00 p.m., at the Tucson Jewish Community Center
Ballroom, 3B00 East River Road, Tucson, Arizona,
before Kimberley W. Gauthier, a Certified Reporter in

the State of Arizona.

COLONEL BRAD ROAN
United States Rir Force
Judge of Criminal Appeals in Washington, D.C.

Hearing Officer

COLONEL MICHAEL MCGUIRE
Commander, 162nd Fighter Wing

Tucson Air Guard Station

LIEUTENANT COLONEL JON WHEELER
Flight Instructor

Bir Education and Training Command

KIM FORNOF
Air Education and Training Command

Project Manager, F-35A Training Basing EIS
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and I will apclogize up front if I mispronournce some
names -- is Mr. Jchn Del Frari, and zfZer that will he
Brian Andrews.
PUBLIC COMMENTS ——

MR. DEL FRARI: WMy name is John Del

Frari, and I am the current president of the 152nd
Fichter Wing Minnte Man Committee, which s a group of
approximately 70 cr 8C local citizens and business
psople that supports the Air National Guard and ars
their edvccates in situations like this in the public
forum.

We'wvs heard last night that there are a
graoup of people who den't want the F-35 to come here
bsacause of noise concerns, and there are a grougp of
pzuple whe wanl Lhe F-33 Lo come here because of
eccnomic reasens. What I'd like to do tonight is talk
abaout the 162nd Fighter Wing itsel=.

I've been inveolved as a Minute Man
Committee member for ten years. 1 neve known thres
wirg commanders and irteracted with two of them. Ard
each wing commander has said that thev have one
misgion and one gcal: The missicn is Zo teach fighter
pilots in the I'-1€ and to make them the best fighter

piloLs Lhey can maeke Lhem; and Lhelr goal is Lo have

the lezst negative impact on the Tucson community.
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Page 23
And by that, they're trying to make as little noise as
they can and be as gocd a community citizen as they

can possibly be.

One of the things, as far as flying the

g

-35 in Tucson -- that I haven't heard anybody mention
yet —— is that right now 20 percent of the flying time
in the F-16 is done in a simulator, and 80 percent is

actual flying time. With the F-35, 40 percent of the
pilot's time is spent in the simulator, and only 60
percent of his time learning tc be a pilot is spent in
the actual aircraft.

The dedication of the pilots, the life
support personnel, the crew chiefs and the mechanics,
I got to spend a day with them out there recently.
They will never send up a plane that they don't feel
is safe. I can't imagine a pilot in the Wing that
would ever fly a plane that he didn't think was safe.
They are dedicated to their mission, and there are nc
compromises, as far as I've seen.

The other thing I'd like to talk about
is, there are a number of benefits that the 162nd
provides to Tucson. The EMTs and the fire crew that
belong here as a part of the 162nd Fighter Wing are

the first responders cut at TIA in case of an

emergency.
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The medical wing and the airmen and
women out at the Guard are here to deal with
emergericies that happen within the stace. They're
trained te do that. They practice to do that. Z2ind
just like a mctorcycle cop out there, you never want
him when he's got ths radar gun pointed at vou; but
when something goes wrong and 1t's an emergency,
they're the people that you're happiest to see.

The other thing I'd lixe to state is
that there are many high school gradua-es here in the
Tucson cormunity that are not ready to go —o college,
maybe can't atforc to go to cocllege, but they have
found = home cut at the 162nd Fighter Wing. They have
lzarnsd jecb skills, thkey have learned leadership
skills, and Lhey makz good cilizens. Thank you.
COLONEL ROAN: Thank, you sir.

Mr. Ardrews, and then it will be
William Valenzuela.

3173 TU

MR. ANDREWS: Thank you. My name is

Brian Andrews, anc I've been a Tucson resident since
19%6. | appreciate the opportunity to speak.

Recent events that nsve cccurred in
Pima County that happened after the draft EIS should

CM-5

bz consldered. They are s gnllicanl; _hey're

supportive of a decision to btase the F-35 in Tucson
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with the 162nd Fighter Wing, and they should be
included the final EIS.

On February 23rd cof this year, the Pima
County Board of Supervisors approved the acquisition
of 382 acres of land scuth of Raytheon and Tucson
International Airport as a buffer, and importantly,
the first step in the creation of an air
transportation, aerospace defense employment center in
Pima County.

In a February 21st memorandum this year
to the board of supervisors, Pima County manager Chuck
Huckleberry recommended to the Board to authorize this
land acquisition and cemmit the property to the
development of a future aerospace and defense research
park, and to ensure that these uses are compatible and
contribute to Pima County's ability to become a leader
in aerospace and defense industry contracting.

Additicnally, January 19th, 2012, a
memorandum to the board of supervisors,

Mr. Huckleberry states: "In addition, we need to
ensure the Arizona Air National Guard facility that
operates from TIA is sustained in the long term and
secures appropriate new pileot training missions and
activities, particularly as they relate to the new Air

Force fighter, the F-35." Our Pima County leaders

CM-5
cont'd
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Page 26
have recognized the value of the Air National Guard
and its mission economically in the community, and I
support their view cof the Guard and its mission.

I'm in the construction industry, and
in a January 25th, 2012 roadway investments and
economic white paper, Pima County proposed investing CM-5

it'd
over $140 million in bond money for a subregional -
arterial roadway program in support of the development
of this aerospace corridor. The Air Guard brings

important econcmic benefits to our community, and we

would suffer and be a lesser viable community if they

were not here and not functioning. -
Additionally, I've heard many

complaints about the noise; the comparative noise
levels of the F-35 to the F-16. And I brought a sound
meter today, just to put things in perspective for
myself. I want to share with that currently you're
enduring 70.9 decibels, and I see no discomfort in the
room. I believe the nine decibel difference between
the F-16 and the F-35 is something we can all live
with. Thank you.

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you, sir.
Mr. Valenzuela and then Alan Tonelson.

3174TU

MR. VALENZUELA: Thank you for having

me. My name is Bill Valenzuela. I'm a native

Peterson Reporting, Videc & Litigation Services

Peterson Reporting, Video & Litigation Services

Z¢10¢ aunr

[eul



siduosuel] BulleaH 21jqnd — 1uswnoog asuodsay Juswwo) — g Xipuaddy

T1¢-8'd

1uswalels 19edw| [elusawuoliAug Buiseg Bulurel] vse-H

10
24,
12
13
14
G
16
17
18
19
20
2L
22
23
24

25

Page 27

Tucsonan. I'm in construction. I'm a member of the

Arizona Veteran's Hall of Fame. I've worked real
close with the 162nd, and I agree with what the last
two fellows have said. I'm past chairman of the
Airport Authority.

The airport really needs the 162nd
there. The FAA supports the airport by the landing
and take-offs. The Alr Guard comes in real handy for
that. I worked real hard with the 162nd. I'm a
military guy. I didn't retire with the military, but
I'm a former Marine.

We loved the planes, especially when
they saved us with air-to-ground support. We need

this plane very bad. I'm in construction. We need

the jobs. The city of Tucson needs the jobs. The GE-3
almighty dollar of foreign countries is going to start

coming back to Tucson by us training the foreign

pilots. Lord, we need it in Tucscon.

Why can't we work together? Why can't
we show the nation that we can work tcgether to get
this accomplished some way or another. I don't know
how, but if we sit down and talk together, show the
country we can do it. I see heads shaking no, but it

can be done. The city, Phoenix. You can work

anything together in Phoenix. I know it can be done.
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Keep shaking your heads, but it can be done. You
don't have to be so negative about it. If you read
this article on Lightning, about the Arizona aerospace
defense industry, it gives you a lot of details and
numbers.

Let's try and work together. Forget
the negative persons, and -- maybe we can convince
them. What if China starts training our enemies? Who
is going to give you the right to protest? Right now,
thank God, that's why I served. My commander used to
say, "Why the hell did we serve our country if it
ain't to give the people the right to protest?" I'm
proud of being there. So just let's just work
together on this. Thank you very much.
COLONEL ROAN: Thank you, sir.

Mr. Tonelson and then Mr. Ed Verberg. 3175 TU

MR. TONELSON: I guess I'm the first
no. But it's not a no to the F-35. I want to make GE-4
that very clear. We need that airplane.

I spent some time on the ground back in
the early 1950s in combat. I was very grateful for
the fighter pilots that came in and probably saved my
life more than once.

I live on the northwest side of the

city, and the prcblem I guess I have -- and in talking
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to my neighbors -- back in 1950, with very limited
equipment, those pilots could find a dime in the
field. Why they can't find the flight pattern here

with all the equipment they have, I don't know. We're

way out of the flight pattern, yet we get lots of
flyovers, and that's a concern. We have the noise
now. We're not supposed it have it where we are.

With a louder airplane, we're going to have more noise
again. We're not supposed to have it where we are.
At least a lot of people in my neighborhood are
against this.

And I understand the gentleman that
last spoke. It's not like we're going to have it in
Tucson or we're not going to have it. There area
three other areas being considered. 1I've got the
feeling when the last gentleman spoke, he was saying,
Well, we if don't have it here, we're not going to
have it. That's not the case. 1It's just a gquestion
of where are you going to put it, where the least
amount of environmental impact is going to be. Thank
you.

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you, sir.

Mr. Verberg and then Mr. Bill Moore.
MR. VERBERG:

Good evening. My name is

Ed Verberg, and I'm vice president of the Tucson

NO-62

NO-8

3176 TU
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Mountains Association. For those of you who don't
know, the Tucson Mountains Association is the cldest
resident organizaticn in the state of Arizona. 77
years we've been in operation. We addressed a lot of
issues over those years. Some of them very difficult
issues, not easy to resolve, like this one. We
represent over 10,000 residents on the west side, so
what I'm saying is not lightly said. We have a number
of concerns, but I'll just talk about three of them
briefly.

Recreational benefits on the west side,
biological resources on the west side and cultural
resources on the west side. For those of you who
enjoy the west side, yvou may remember we have Saguaro
National Park. For those who are not as familiar, the
Sweetwater Preserve, which is over 700 acres of a
beautiful strand cof Saguaros, with hiking trails,
riding trails, we've got Tucson Mountains Park. We SO-7
have other smaller parks. We have Gates Pass
Overlook. People come here just for the scenery.

There's a lot of tourism in our area as
a result of all of these benefits. Now if you look at
the U.S5. Fish and Wildlife Service, what do they do

every five years? They do a survey of recreational

benefits. Anybcedy gquess how many billions of dollars
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are generated by tourism and recreational benefits?

It is huge, absolutely huge. And they take that all

way down to the county level and sublevel. So we know
there are huge recreaticnal benefits. We know there
are cultural benefits, both Native American as well as
the Civilian Conservation Corps.

These are values on the west side that
we treasure. They're important because they bring
huge amounts of money here. They bring residents here
who want to relocate to Tucson.

We are concerned about the noise
levels.

If you look at the noise pattern, they show

it right over the airport. But where does it come?
Alan addressed this just a few moments ago. It comes
over the Tucson Mountains. And it doesn't come in a

straight line. It comes like this, and it comes like
this and it comes like that.

As a result of these concerns and many
others -- which we have put in a letter, and we'll
send a new letter as a part of the process -- our
board just last week voted unanimously to oppose the
location of F-35 here. We are not opposed to the
F-35. We think it's a very important addition to our

military. We support that strongly, but we don't

believe it belongs in Tucscn. Thank you very much.

Page 31

S0-7

cont'd

GE-4

10
i h
12
13
14
15
16
iy
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Page 32

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you, sir.

Mr. Bill Moore, and then Mr. Steve Thu.

MR. MOORE: That was a nice segue for

what I'd like teo say. My name is Bill Mocre, and I've

been here since 1972. 1I'm a retired military pilot,
11 years in active duty and 14 with the 162nd, so I'm
very familiar with all aspects of this issue. I was
part of environmental studies when I was stationed at
And I'm

Davis-Monthan. So this is very important.

glad this attention is being paid to it. I'1ll move
on.

Money is what I wanted to talk about
And we don't have a

first. Everybody loves money.

lot going on here in Tucson right now, and our future
looks pretty dim in the economy. I'm not here as a
politician or anything else. I'm just saying that how
many people are aware that the golf tournament is

going on right now? I spent a day out there
yesterday. That's worth 75,000,000 for the community.

The gem show is worth 100,000,000 teo

the community.

Those are annual things. They could

go away in a heartbeat. The -- as a matter of fact,
there's been discussion of the gem show spreading out
to other areas.

Rather than go that way, I just learned

3177 TU
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tonight that the propcsed number is 280,000,000 per
year on a continuing basis -- cbvicusly it would be
increase -- that the Air Guard is going to bring in.
And you Jjust can't imagine how much this community
would lose if the Air Guard shrunk to almost nothing.
Your taxes

The tax base would go away. might go up

just to support the community as it is now. But I'll

move on. Those are just numbers. That's the ugly

part. I'll move from that ontc a more emcticnal
thing.

The 162nd Fighter Wing is not as much
of a military unit as it is a family unit. When I was
in the Air Force, 1 was assigned to a unit. When I
joined the 162nd, I joined a family. There's a huge

difference. They accepted me. They didn't have to,

but they did. 1It's a big deep community operation and
it needs to continue. There's third, maybe even
fourth generations, when I retired in 1984, of people
that work there. They are born here, they work here
and they retire here. And then their grandchildren
work here. So it's more than just about an eight
percent increase in nocise.

The other thing I want to talk about
just & little bit is —— other than the history of the

unit. Everybody knows what that is at this point.
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Everybody had to walk by the wall to come in here.
Take a goecd lcok going out. It wouldn't be there if

it hadn't been Zor passive pecple. They're no longer

passive pcoplc. Israclis arc militant. ZIf we
cortinue cn this course to denv cur military modern
extended weapcn systams, we will be in troukle. Thank
b o) O

COLONEL RCAN: Thank you, sir. Mr. Thu
anc then Elizabeth McFarlane. 3178 TU

MR, TEU: Hi, my name is Steve Thu. I
was in that first class that trained here in 1370. 1T
was in the wvery tirst class. So 1've had a
relationship with this group for 42 years.

I'm a former fighter pilot. Z've flown
Lhe F-16 cul Lhere [or aboul 10 years., And I know
that this unit does =verything it possibly can to
mirimize the impact or the cityv by changing our flicht
patterns if we have te, and by, you know, punishing
those that sometimes don't fcllow the flight plans.

I know that cne gentleman said that
they come from different directicns on the northwest.
Now sometimes that's true, but it's rno:- because we
wart to. It's because the air traZfic controllers
have seld, Hey, we'ws gol an alrlliner over here, go
laft.

Don't go right. The last thing you want to do
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Page 35
is meet them head-on sometime. Sc a lot of that is
safety type concerns and not because we want to do it,
not because we want to make that extra noise. TEYg
because we're required to.

I know noise has been a big factor, and
I understand that. But there are lots of neoises in
this city that we don't control. I asked somebody
today coming in, I said, what's the decibel level of a
Harley motorcycle when it goes by? It's about 110
decibels. You compare that -- I mean, if you're in
the northwest, you're not going to clocse off your
streets that go out toe Gates Pass and stuff because a
motorcycle is driving down it.

And I think that that's the type of
thing -- it may be a little noise for a short period
of time, but I think it's something we can live with.
I know that we need the -- everybody says that we need
the F-35, and that's true.

I know a lot of pecple here probably
have sons and daughters that have been over and served
in Iraq and Afghanistan. The last thing you want to
do is have these guys call up and say, Hey, I need
some air support, and we go, We couldn't train these
guys, so we have nothing to send down there to help

you guys out. So I lcocok at that -- I think we can
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work things out.
Yeah, try and send it somewhere else.
If the base gces away, we've heard about what kind cf
morecy that is for this city that we riced. We nced the
morey. I'm in the commercial real estate bus_ness and
you know, we look at those things pret-y hard, and big
companies that want to come here look at that pretty
hard too. Taank you.
COLONEL ROAN: Thank you.

Ms, McgFarlane, and then Mr, T-m

Bialiong. 3179 TU

] GF-4

ME. McFARLANE: I'm Elizabeth

McFarlane, and I'm against the F-35 coming to Tucscr,
dsspite my respect for the Air Ferce. 1 bought a
house closer Lo Lhe U of A Lbhan D-M several years
back.

Mo documents mentioned jets or D-M. One year

later, it was an unlivable zcne, both in terms cf
noise snd safety.

Neighbors spcke at length at puklic
hsarings against the expansicn tc no avall. Planes
fly richt overheac such that if they fall, they would
lard on my house -- and at very low elevations. It
was stetes at that time they were 15 to 20 miles out

and wsre 3- Lo 4,C00 feel, dropping Lhree degrees

towards the base, or about 300 feet over houses two

()
o
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miles from the base.

The coleonel quoted 85 decibels for an
A-10 at 1,500 feet. In 2004 we asked, How loud is an
A-10 at 500 feet? How many decibels will the F-35 be
at 500 feet? Table B-1 does not include the F-35 in
this DEIS. Clearly this information is most relevant
and should be prominent and not missing from such a
document. This DEIS is not ready for comment if it is
missing such basic information.

I see the F-35 at 1,000 feet in table
TU-3.2-5 is 120 decibels. T think OSHA only allows
four seconds per day at this DB lewvel. I alsoc noticed
that the threshold of permanent hearing loss is not
specified.

Also, this DEIS does not seem to
mention that TIA lacks the ability to load live
ordinance. One fear is the F-35 will sneak into D-M,

much as Operation Snowbird, Tornados, Harriers, F-16s

and F-18s have snuck intoc D-M, all with no EIS. Also,
the high noise zone should extend much further to the

northwest along the flight path and should be based on

actual noise measurements.

I pointed out before the expansion that

our property values would go down. My property values

have gone down. The DEIS does not mention, for

Page 37
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example, that I can't add to my house or rebuild if it

burns down. I requested compensation in advance. No
one has offered me any compensation. I still have
only single-pane windows and a swamp cooler. No

mitigation has been offered to me, but the DOD JLUS

5-8 admits that it wouldn't work anyway, it's, quote,
important to note that single event noise levels at
significantly higher decibels will not be fully
mitigated.

Citizens in airport expansions tend to
suffer more adverse health effects than the rest of
the population, like the seriocus health effects from
overhead jets were pointed out before the expansion.
The DOD acknowledges JLUS 5-3 that noise is louder at
levels -- that lcuder levels can cause permanent
increased blood pressure, sleep

hearing loss, stress,

deprivation, and decreased ability to concentrate.
I was diagnosed with a life-threatening
disease after the expansion -- though cause/effect

would be difficult to prove. Maybe pro F-35 peocple

will make money and call us unpatriotic, but these are
our homes and our very lives at stake. Louder jets
have already harmed me and my neighbors, and nc one

has helped or seems to care. The old, "it doesn't

affect me" attitude seems to prevail.

Page 328
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The guiding principles in JLUS 1-4, to
focus on fair equitable solutions for all effected gﬁ#
parties has failed. I'm unaware of effective legal
recourse. The F-35 does not belong in a major NG
metropolitan area. Thanks.

COLONEL ROAN: Mr. Amalong, and then
Marshall Brown. 3180 TU

MR. AMALONG: Hi, I'm Tim Amalong. And

while I'm pretty technical, I'm not into the numbers
and everything else because there's a hypothetical
through all this, with the what-ifs. I can kind of
tell you, I worked out of Tucson International for 20
years in the aviation industry. I own three
businesses on the west ramp. I'm out there every day
working, and it's five days a week, sometimes six days
a week. 1 was out there all day today.

And without -- after last night's
hearing and a lot of the discussions, I just kind of
made a mental note to really leocok at these F-16s
flying in the path and coming in. And I don't think a
lot of people -- they say they're really loud and
everything else.

When planes are coming into land,
they're powered off. They're not powered on, and all

these huge decibels. They deo flyby's once they go --
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get down, sometime they'll do go-rounds. They don't

go to full afterburners or anything else. They're
just pretty much gecing, and then they get up to
altitude at the end of 1-1, come back around, and
they're at low power settings.

So I really encourage anybody and
everybody, you can go park by the airport and listen
to stuff. It's not like they're really cranking this
out all the time. Scometimes when they are heavy they
get off the ground and initially they'll power up and
you'll hear it, and it's just very instantaneous.
Sometimes it's two or three of them taking off, but

then it's done.

I have to get an FAA physical for my

pilot's license -- I'm a commercial pilot -- every
year. My hearing in the last 20 years has been the
same, I've been able to pass the test, I'm on the

west ramp of Tucson International, which is right --
coming back with the afterburners, they usually use
1-1. And I can tell you my hearing is as good as it
was 20 years age. I'm still getting the same physical
and passing the same physical. 8So for people to say

that they're losing their hearing on the flight path

just

of these jets that are backed off of the power is

absurd, in my opinion.
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I talked a little bit about the 162nd.
I've talked to a lot of the fighter pilots, the
maintenance personnel over there. They've got an
impeccable maintenance reccrd. They get the best of
the best when it comes to the 162nd. They get people
who've retired out of the Air Force that have done
this their whole life. They know how to do it right.
They've got maintenance people that have just tens of
thousands of hours of working on these jets.

Obviously, this being a new jet,

everybody says, it's like, well, this thing hasn't

been proven. You're right. Well, if you think the
United States Air Force military is going to let an
unsafe aircraft go to anyplace, I don't care if it's
in the middle of the desert in New Mexico, or
because they're not.

whatever, you're crazy,

I mean, the last thing they want this
thing to do is go down or have problems. As soon as
it does, obviously something is going to be shut down.
They ground aircraft and stuff on the commercial side
when they have problems. So if there's problems,

they're definitely not going to allow it to come here.
So I just want to encourage you to, like
Mr. Valenzuela said, just -- I know there's a lot of

negativities and stuff, people shaking their head and
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everything else, but just try to work together and
we'll get through this. And try to be respectful of
each other. Thank you.
COLONEL ROAN: Thank you.
Mr. Brown and then Gary Hunter.
3181 TU

MR. BROWN: Hi, I'm Marshall Brown with

the 162nd Minute Man Committee. And I think I can
speak for all of us here -- that all of our -- these
guys have operated out here for over 50 years safely,
without major incident, and what we're locking at is a
major impact for our community.
At some point, we've got to stand up as
a community and steop pushing things away and saying,
"not here." We need the investment in our community.
Here these guys are talking about a minimum of a
$175,000,000 in construction investment. And not only
do to we need that investment for these folks here in
this group, it also affects the aerospace industry.

I1f we don't continue to invest in that,
Raytheon and the rest of the aerospace industry is not
going to continue to invest in our community. And if
those things happen, we're going to wind up running
off all the business in this town. 1It's what
continues to develop ocur tax base. It's what allows

us to invest in all these parks and this recreation.

GE-3
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We've taken a huge hit on the
convention industry because of the effects of the
eccnomic downfall that we've had over the past few
years. This is a consistent group of folks that will
continue to provide economic stability for our
community for a long time, and I think that's what we
need to focus on above anything else. Thank you.
COLONEL ROAN: Thank you. Mr. Hunter
and then Rita Ornelas. 3182 TU

MR. HUNTER: My name is Gary Hunter.
One of the first speakers gave us a very important
little piece of information, that the sound level in
this room is 70 decibels. Now, when an F-35 flies
1,000 feet over us, the decibel level of the F-35 is
121 decibels. That's a difference of 51 decibels.
Not a lot, or is it?

Decibel levels are measured on a
logarithmic scale. So when that F-35 flies 1,000 feet
above us, it's 32 times as loud as the level of this
room. I don't know if you can turn this up so that my
voice is 32 times as lcud as it is right now, but I
don't think the audience would appreciate that.

We have many concerns about the draft

EIS. Here is just one: page 56 of the executive

NO-21

summary says, quote, In a typical arrival flight
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configuration, the F-35A is approximately 22 decibels
louder than the F-16C. That means the F-35 is four
times as lcud as the F-1l6.
But a recent errata sheets says 22 NO-21

cont'd

decibels is wrong. It should be nine decibels. That

means the F-35 is only twice as loud as the F-16.
Which is right, four times as loud? Twice as loud?
Now, these decibel levels were measured
Did I

at Ocotillc elementary school. Wait a minute.

say measured? They weren't measured. Instead, they

were generated by a computer model. How accurate is

NO-42
the computer model? Let's compare it with actual
decibel levels that were measured that were repcrted
in this Table E2 of the Environmental Impact Statement
for Eglin Air Force base.

Now, these are measured decibel levels
as published by the Air Force. And what do these say?
At 500 feet ATL, the F-35 is 24 decibels louder than
At 1,000

the F-16C. That's almost six times as loud.

feet AGL, the F-35 is 21 decibels louder than the NO-21

F-16. That's four times as loud. And that's close to

the 22-decibel difference quoted in the executive

summary, which the Air Force now says is wrong. Which

is right?

There's one way to find out. Bring the —INOJ
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F-35 to Tucson for a series of test flights. Measure

the noise. Let the residents of Tucson experience the
noise so that they can make up their own minds. And
you know what? If the F-35 is as gquiet as its
supporters claim, then I'11 welcome all 72 of them to
Tucson. But until the EIS is based on actual noise
measurements and not computer-generated numbers the
Air Force cannot make an informed decision about the
F-35 bed down. Thank you.
COLONEL ROAN: Thank you.

Ms. Ornelas, and then Mr. Robin Gomez.

MS. ORNELAS: Hello, everybody. I

agree, like everybody else, the F-35 is a great plane
once it's ready. Obvicusly, it's not ready yet. It
will be one day. I hope that this community can work

together, if it ever does come here. I personally do
not believe that it belcngs in Tucson because of so
much population around not only TIA, but D-M.

Why do I say D-M? Because anything
that usually comes to TIA we will see at D-M. I live

by D-M. I know the noise. I know the disaster that

can happen, the closing of the school where I'm at.
I don't know what will happen if the
F-35 comes to Tucson.

I hope that it goes somewhere

else. I hope it does get trained. It will.

Page 45
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Somewhere. I wish that there was a way that we in
Tucson could work together. We've been trying to do

this. It doesn't seem to happen. It's like everybcdy
is either on one side or another of this issue.

And people don't seem to consider the
little people in this town. There's a lot of little
people that are going to be affected if this plane
Right now,

comes. they don't live under what they

call not-fit-for-residential-use. But 1f this plane

comes, they will be in there. I'm in there right nocw,

over D-M. TIt's not a pretty picture. You think your

homes have gone down in value? You have no idea what
mine is not worth -- not worth.

There's a lot of things that are going
to happen if this F-35 comes to Tucson. A lot of
things.

It's not only the noise. 1It's how it's going

to affect the pecple in this town. Yes, construction

is needed. A lot of jobs are needed. But I think
there's a lot of talent in Tucson to bring a lot of
jobs, a lot of different things to Tucson. There's a
lot of people here with great ideas and mecney, and
ways that they can bring people here to bring jobs to
Tucson.

And I know that the Air Force will do a

good job with the F-35, wherever it's placed, but I
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really do not believe that it belongs in Tucson. And
I don't know where you all live, but just think of the
pecple where they live. They didn't choose to live
under this kind of noise. They have been there for
many, many years. And when this kind of noise comes
and all of a sudden they're under it, and you say,

Well, why don't they just move? I'm sorry. It's not

so easy for somebody tec move. Has it been easy for
any of you to sell your homes when you wanted to? How
bad is the economy right now? Yeah, it's going to get
worse.

Why can't we work together? I think we
can. We just have to figure ocut a way. Let's come
together and make Tucson a greater place than it is
right now, because this is a great town to live in.
It's a small town with a lot of population. Thank you
very much.

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you.

Mr. Gomez and then Sandi Eghtesani.

3184 TU
MR. GOMEZ: Gecod evening. My name is
Robin Gomez. I don't believe that it makes common
sense to base the loudest and yet unproven Air Force
strike fighter in a commercial airport in the middle GE-1

of a metropolitan area in order to train foreign

pilots. It's not logical.
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I made a point last night that the DEIS
does not appear ready for public input. The noise
data is jumping arocund between what is needed for
testing and what might be needed for training. The
problem is, other than the testing, both are really
unknown at this time.

There's no historical safety data on
A brand-new plane, new technology,

this unit. skin,

frame, engines, avionics, almost any part you can

think of. And with nc -- having a lot of trouble in

the testing, eventually they'll get over that. Then

you're going to have to work the bugs out. That's not
the kind of plane you bring over a populated area.

The alternatives presented by the EIS
are highly selective.

They talk two of them, they'll

tell you they're uneccnomical, the 24 and 48 number of
planes. Does that mean we only have the third
alternative with the 727 So there's something wrong
with how the alternatives have been set up. What
about the alternative of beefing up Gila Bend

auxiliary field, or Libby airfield to take care of
these unproven new fifth-generation aircraft that
ought to be -- and we need them, but they ought to be
where there's no population until you get enough

experience to work those bugs out and you know what's
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going on. SE
What the -- and Mr. Valenzuela, T

accept your challenge, I think it's very important.

All right? What you saw on there with those three

lines, the contour lines, is you saw when you expanded
for those 72, you're going to affect 5,127 people

automatically. Every realtor in town is going to know

that. What's going to happen to those people?

They're TIA. I don't know live at TIA, and neither do

you, I'm sure.

So what —-- that's just by putting in

that simple extension. The moment you announce that,

those people lose thelr property wvalues. And it's not
only just the property value that yvou'wve lost in the So-1

recession -- all of us are hoping it will come back

one day a little bit. As socn as the realtor tells

you that, you're dead, ckay, if you want to sell.

The second thing is, you ruin the guy's

quality of life. All those people. Now, those are

NO-36

minorities and low-income pecple, ckay? So if you

want to do something, it's very easy. —
And we've talked a lot around D-M about

what can be done, but it's going to cost some money.

Why not move it —-- go look at some of those houses.

Why not move some of those people? Yes, you're going
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to have to pay, and it's going to cut into your
construction business. But you've got to be realistic
about the people you're harming in this community.
You just can't ignore them. Not everybody lives up

here. Remember that. Not everybody liwves up here.

Okay. Sorry.
COLONEL ROAN: The following speaker
will be Hank Peck.
3185 TU

MS. EGHTESANI: Good evening. My name

is Sandi Eghtesani. I'm a business woman in Tucson
and I'm also on the bcard of directors for the 162nd
Minute Man committee. My statement is as follows:
Southern Arizona's aerospace defense industry is one
of the largest in the nation, making Tucson a city GEs
uniquely suited to support the F-35 aircraft at the ”
airport.

The aerospace and defense industry
leads as a major contributor to the regional eccnomy.
The industry generates between 5- and 6,000,000,000 in
revenues annually from more than 200 companies.
Southern Arizona is highly desirable as a location for
growth and retention of aerospace defense.

Most importantly, the industry provides
The average salary

high-wage jobs for our residents.

of an aerospace defense worker in southern Arizona is
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$60,000. Southern Arizona also accounts for 2.3
percent of the entire U.S5. aerospace product and the
parts manufacturing industry. It offers one of the
highest concentrations of aerospace defense workers in
the country. One in five jobs in the region is tied
to the sector. Aviation and aerospace technology is
one of southern Arizona's most substantial economic
pillars.

Tucson International Airport is an
economic engine, with an estimated 17,000 people
employed in the vicinity of the airport, generating a
payroll of 800,000,000. At least ancther --
800,000,000, correct. T almost had to look at that
twice myself. At least another 10,000 people work in
the area around the airport, with over 8,000 acres of
property.

Tucson International Airport is also
one of the largest landowners in the area. Employers
at Tucson International Airpert account for over
3,500,000,000 in economic impact to southern Arizona,
and I support the F-35 wholeheartedly coming to
Tucson. Thank you.

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you.
Mr. Peck and then Chris Tans. 3186 TU

MR. PECK: My name is Hank Peck and I'm
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a member of DM50, a business group that supports the
air base. I'm also a native Tucsonan, and I grew up
in the flight path. And I will tell you that I
support -- you can tell by this that T support the GE-3

F-35.

When I was a kid, we'd hear those jets
and we would run outside because we just loved the
sound. We'd look up and we'd identify the planes. It
was part of growing up in Tucson, it was something
that we were really proud of. We were proud cf that
base.

One of the things that strikes me as
that -- we're asking men and women to put themselves
in harm's way every day, and this is an airframe that
can protect those men and women. And I know that this
is going to go somewhere. I know it's going to go to
a base somewhere. But I also know that the preferred
bases are going to be in Arizona. These are the
conditions that cur pilots need for the best training.
These are the ccnditicns that they're going to be
fighting in. And so I support -- I guess, as a
sacrifice, I hear the noise. We all hear the noise.

I support -- it's my part of what I can do, I suppose,

to support those people that are putting themselves in

harm's way so I can enjoy the benefits of my life.

Peterson Reporting, Videc & Litigation Services

Peterson Reporting, Video & Litigation Services

Z¢10¢ aunr

[eul



¥¢c—8'd

siduosueld] BulesaH a1jqnd — 1uawinaoq asuodsay uawwo) — g Xipuaddy

Juawalels 19edw| [eluawuoliAug Buiseg Bulurell vse-H

10
24,
12
13
14
G
16
17
18
19
20
2L
22
23
24

25

Page 53

I would also point out economically,
the 162nd Fighter Wing has an economic impact of
$280,000,000 according to the 2008 Arizona Department
of Commerce study. The jobs that it generates --
there's 1,450 Tucsonans employed there, and there's
1,000 of them employed full-time. You know, this is a
low-wage town, and those 1,000 jobs, those are jobs
that you can raise a family on. So I would suggest
that we think about that.

The benefit -- the thing that will harm
us are -- is, once again, the history of Tucson saying
noc. We've got a long history of saying no, and a lot
of people know that. And it's one reason why we have
the kind of wages and the kind of jobs in this
community that we have now.

So I say that we say yes

to this. I say that we support our airmen. Thank

you.
COLONEL ROAN: Thank you.
Chris Tans and Dr. Bierny. 3187 TU

MS. TANS: My name is Chris Tans. I've

lived for 40 years in midtown Tucson. And like many
others who have spoken here, I recognize the
importance of the training mission of the Air Force,
but feel that these -- the F-35s should not be brought

]GE-I

in to a major metropolitan area. I happen to live in
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the urban core and we hear a lot of the noise.

We know that there will be —— from
reports, from various places where comparisons have
been made, we know that the F-35 will make a lot of
noise. People have been talking about the importance
-- you know, we need to be able to raise our families.
That's not just a financial issue. We have to have an
environment where there's a relative degree of
peacefulness.

Somebody brought up Harley Davidsons.
We don't want Harley Davidsons running through ocur
streets. And in making choices about where the F-35
should be based, it has to be taken into account that
this is a commercial airport serving a city in the
boundaries of the city.

And that concern about a commercial
airport and a military base shows up in the draft EIS.
There's a quote in there, under scenario T3, that's
the maximum, the 72 planes. "The projected annual
military airfield operation would exceed the maximum
numper allowed as per agreement with the Tucscon CM-2
Airport Authority." So there is such an agreement.

There are issues about these combinations.

I'd 1like to know what the issues are.

What are the concerns of the commercial airport about
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the number of military flights going out of it? What
is the maximum number that's allowed now?

Some of the alternative bases that are

being considered don't have the combination of
CM-2
We are in cont’d

commercial flights with military flights.
the unusual situation of military operations at the
commercial airport, plus another Air Force base.

So -- I've got 30 seconds. I'll stop ahead of time.

Thank you.

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you. Doctor, and

then Joey Flynn.

3188 TU

DR. BIERNY: Gocd afternoon. Like

everybody who has spoken teoday, I'm very much in favor

for the pilots for the F-35 to be trained properly in
the right location.
I have several major concerns about it,

however. One of them 1s safety. Single-engine,

single-pilot, untested safety is to be established in

SA-7

SA-16

the middle of a 1,000,000 pecple city. That does not

make too much sense to me.
The second one is, of course, the

noise. It's not just a little bit loud. 1It's

extremely loud. The -- a few months ago, in February

of 2010, my wife and I were walking in our

neighborhood, and we heard this really intolerable
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military aircraft noise, which we have never heard
before. It turns that this was caused by F-18s. The

F-35, we understand, is going to be louder than the
F-18.

In fact, the next day there were two
letters to the editor in the local paper by pecple —--
just regular people; not activists in any sense of the
term -- and this is what they said: One of them said

it was insanely loud, almost unbearable. You had to
cover your ears.

I'd like to be a gracious host to the
military, but this is not acceptable. Anocther one
said, Normally I'm not tco bothered by aircraft noise,
but this shook the windows. If you are talking to
someone right next to you, you would have to shout to
communicate. If that kind of noise became a regular
occurrence in Tucson, I would not be happy.
In fact, I recall also two Air Force
officers, cne a retired lieutenant colonel and wing
commander at Davis-Monthan, and a past military
consultant who had to put together a pitch for the
F-35 back in 2004. Now he says that if he had to do
it over again, he would focus more on promoting Davis-—
Monthan or TIA as a location for quieter missions,

such as unmanned aircraft, drones, over attack

Page 56
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aircraft. Noise will be an issue.

Another one, a retired Air Force
colonel said that F-35s are tco loud for populated
areas. The Air Force and Tucson have had a
tremendously friendly and mutually beneficial
relationship for decades. Ordinarily news of a new
flying squadron deployment here would be very well
received.

Unfortunately, the Air Force has made a

huge blunder in the design cf the F-35. It is too

NO-37
loud to be flown near any population center on the

continent. These are retired military people. This =

is the way we feel. There's only cne way to find out,
to inform the population about the amount of noise
that would be caused by the F-35. Flyovers, test
flyovers by F-35s. We've been told that this would GE-2
not happen because there are not enough F-35s. My
recommendation would be to wait until they have

enocugh, and to inform the population about how it

would affect us. Thank you.

COLONEL ROAN: Ms. Flynn, and then John

Eslinger. 3189 TU

MS. FLYNN: My name is Joey Flynn. I
own and operate a law office in the Sam Hughes

neighborhood. I think I spend way more of my waking
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hours at the office than I do at my home, and I must
say that the noise doesn't bother me or affect my
concentration, as much as somebody else pocinted out,
the Harley Davidsons driving through the drive through
at the post office next door.

There's been talk today about the money
aspect of things, real estate wvalues and the need
for -- real estate values going down on the one hand,
and income coming into Tucson on the other. I'd kind
of like to flip that con its head a little bit for you
all, and talk to as another taxpayer in this room. We
are all taxpayers as we sit here today. I pay my
federal taxes. We pay our state and local taxes. As
a taxpayver, I want to see my federal government -- and
I know this a lot to ask from the federal government
-- but I want to see my federal government spend their
money in the smartest way possible. They are shopping
What are the three things you look

for real estate.

for in real estate? Location, location, location.

GE-3

So looking at this from the other side,
Tucson is the perfect location. 1It's the smartest
way, in my view, for the federal government to spend
our tax dollars. We've got the -- in terms of

location, we've got the best flyving weather ever. We

have the proximity to the training ranges.
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Flight hours and jet fuel are
expensive. If we're going to spend that kind of
money, let's do it an efficient manner and get the
most bang for ocur buck.

And third is the one other people have
talked about here, but I think is the most important,
and that's the men and women of the 162nd. They fly
and maintain more F-16s out there than half the
world's small countries couldn't even dream cf owning,
and they do it efficiently and professionally. And
they have a tremendous, tremendous safety record. For
the federal government not to look at that safety
record and the value that those men and women bring to
this project, I think would be a huge mistake.

On the local level, it's the same
thing. Those F-16s out of that base aren't getting
any younger. And we, as a community -- the Air
National Guard is huge employer in this community. We
need to see that continue. We need the continued
viability of the airway.

Second and third, of course the
economic boost that it would bring to us in the short-
term through construction and the annual income. And

finally, I think the training mission of the Air

National Guard serves an important function in our
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community. It reminds us here in Tuacson, the old
Pueblo, those oI us irn Pima County and as members of
the stete oI Arizcna, as residents in zhe state of
Arizone, that we arc all part of somecthing that is
larger than oursslves. It isn't “ust about us. Thank
¥OU.
COLONEL ROAN: Thank vou.
Mr. Es_inger and then Anne Gomez.
3190 TU

MR. ESLINGER: Hcwdy, I'm John

Eslinger, and I'm happy to be here, I Jjust spent
three weeks in a real big, ccld very communist
country. We're lucky to have meetings like this anca
it isn't because cf irtellectuals and academians
[sic]. It's because of the sacrifices of the people
in Lhe mililary. &And Lheir sacrilices are
1life-changing.

I do respect everyone's opinion, but
sometimes I dc disagree. It appears to me that many
folks here are ooen to sacrifice to the cause as lorg
as 1it's scmebcdy elss's sacrifice. Lez's face 1it,
Tucson International AZrport opened in 1948. DO-M
Fact:

opened in 1925. three things change in human

history; names, dates and technology. Ain't no doubt

i my soulherrn Arizong mind Lhal someons was

complaining about airp_anes ever since that date, at
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Page 61
both of these airports.
So let's talk about technoclogy. To

make an airplane do what it does best, you've got to

add some thrust to it. Thrust comes with noise.
That's kind of a novel notion. Yep, and you're right,
both airports were out in the weeds in the beginning,
and that's my point. These airports were here first,
and then folks built everything around them, knowing
the airport was there.

So when I bought my house, I had to
sign a disclaimer that I knew that my house was in the
traffic pattern. And some people don't do their
planning, but then they blame someone else for the
lack of their planning, and that makes me really
tired.

This is a free country, and if you
don't like it, you have the option to move. Not like
where T've just been, where you've got to get
if you

permission. So shut your whining and move,

don't like it. Get used to the fact that life is
always full of challenges and hard decisions, and
belly up to the bar and take care of them, and leave
the rest of us alone.

And one thing I've noticed about

whiners; they're always ready to let somebody else
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solve thelr problems. And te the gay last night who
said if yecu like airplanes and necise, well, I'll trade
my house witah you, well, sir, I live under the traffic
pattern, and I ain't coing teo trade houses with you
bsacause I like mine better than yours. 8o my
suggestion is, man up and move. Technology changes.

Get used to it.

:' GE-3

Brinc on the F-35,

COLONEL RCAN: Thank you. BEnne Gomez

anc then Mr., Mike Zakis. 3191 TU
MR, GCOMEZ: Hi, I'm Ann Gomez, and I
came to Tucson in 1947 prior to the inception of the
Air Force. It dicn't exist until the b0's. So thsre
micht have been a Davis-Monthan, but iz was not a
Davis-Monthan Air [Porce base, because —he Air Forcs
did nol exisL in Lhose days.

Le far as the nonise level in that =ra,
there were very few planes that flew over Tucson at
that time. They wers prop plaing, they were
cartainly -- there wsre no jets. They didn't put thLe

rurway into Davis-Monthan to acccmmedaze jets until

1953,

Sc this thing abcut Davis-Monthan
existing -- I was here before the Air National Cuard.
Thils allerncorn, I sal and I walched Lhe rodeo. And

twa of Colonel McGuire's F-16s flew over the rodeo
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grounds. The Arizona Boys Choir was singing. When
the plane went over, you couldn't hear a thing.

One of the things I want to deal with
is, I'm not sure how you deal with guestions, or maybe
I ought to pose it as something that's lacking in the
EIS, because that's really why we're here. And I look
out at these faces, and I wonder how many of you
actually live -- I know there is cone person who
actually lives in the area that's going to be
impacted.

But the others of you can look down, or
you can look askance. I don't live in the flight path
of TIA. But some of the things that are missing are,
when I looked up at that F-16 flying over the rodeo
grounds, I said but what's missing from the EIS is the
relationship of Davis-Mcnthan and TIA. When we went
to the scoping meeting, there was a brochure that said
that the F-35 would fly in Davis-Monthan airspace from NO-59

time to time. But we have no flight paths. We don't
know where these planes are going to be flying. You
have the noise contours, but notice what's lacking?

The high accident potential zone which we have for

Davis-Monthan. Thank you very much.

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you. Mr. Zakis

and then Mr. Bill Kelly.
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3192 TU

MR, ZAKIS: Hi, there. I'm Iron Mike

Zakis. I have an artificial right leg. I'wve got some

new eyes and I've got some new teeth. And pecple say,
wow, what a great attitude you have. And I think
Tucson has a an attitude too, an attitude that's
tested by how you manage change. That's the only
test. If we're not willing to change, then we have a
bad attitude. TIt's going to happen.

I mean, imagine if nothing happens, if
nothing changes. What happens if nothing changes?
Well, nobody can be born, nobody can die. Children

can't grow. You can't get a promotion. Nothing is

going to change. Technology changes.

I'm an Air Force Vietnam vet. I spent
a year at Vandenberg watching missiles go off. I
spent a year in Thailand watching F-4s F take off. I NOS9
spent a year in South Dakota watching B-52s. You

think that F-35 is noisy? You got a ways to go.

But I think that the test of Tucson is
going to be how it manages change. Somebody said
before that Tucsecn always says no. I think that's
true. I think it's because of attitude, because we
all have a collective attitude in this room, and all
over Tucson. And until we learn how to embrace

change, then nothing is going to happen, and that's
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Page 65
not a good thing. Thank you.
COLONEL RCAN: Thank you, sir.
Mr. Kelly and then Alan Stein.
) 3193 TU
MR. KELLY: Gecod evening, everyone.
I'm Bill Kelly. I'm the CFO of Diamond Ventures. I'm

a member of the DM50, and I also am a board member of

the TREO, the economic development organization for

Tucson. Thank you very much for allowing me to speak.
Basically, 1've agreed to the yeses for ]GEG

the F-35s that has been spoken so far. But I'd like

to alsc add a slightly different perspective I don't

think we've heard tonight. I've had the good fortune

of being the person responsible at Diamond Ventures

for economic development, and I get to do deals, and

I'm very blessed to do that.

One deal that I was very involved in
was the target.com that came to Tucson. I dealt
directly with the Target officials in their selection
of Tucson as the locaticn for a million-square-foot
Target Internet fulfillment center. It employs
hundreds of people. They spent over $100,000,000 on
the facility.

And one of the main resources and
reasons for them picking Tucson was the labor pool

that we have in Tucson. And I'd like to embellish on
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that with the quality of the people that we have
exiting from the military that we have here in Tucscn.
We have Davis-Monthan, we have the Air Guard. 2And one
of the reasons why Target selected this location was
because of that resource. 1It's a tremendous resource.

I'm also a squadron -- a civilian
squadron commander, and I get to interact directly
with the young men and women in the armed services,
and they are as well trained, as honest, as
hard-working as you can imagine. So we have a
resource here that we should take advantage of. 2nd T
think that the employment of these young men and women
here in Tucson is a resource that if that was not
here, we would not be as competitive as we are today.

Target is a Fortune 500 company. It
currently has as its number two man in charge of the
plant ocut in Tucson a retired colonel from
Davis-Monthan. We are really missing the boat here if
we do not keep the F-35 mission and the workforce that
is employed out at Davis-Monthan that is associated oF3
with that. So thank you very much, and yes to the
F—35.

COLONEL ROAN:

Thank you. Mr. Stein,

and then Terry Holpert.
3194 TU

MR. STEIN: Well, it's quite
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interesting following Bill Kelly. I was born in

Tucson. I've lived here all my life, except for four

years, and I've lived in the central city.

The central city is not what it used to
be. The urban core is not what it used to be. The
problem with the DEIS is what it deoesn't say, as much
as a

as what it does say. The issue isn't whether we,

community, desire the F-35 tc be based here for

economic reasons, selfish or otherwise. The purpose

of this meeting, at least as we were told by the
military, was to address the DEIS. The DEIS is filled
with speculation, half-baked truths, and simply is
based on estimates.

I guote the executive summary. Because
the F-35 A is new aircraft, and that it's under
development, some data normally used to predict noise,
air quality and safety conditions cannot be obtained NP.13

at this time. That is a critical problem. But yet we
as a community, we as citizens, by our government are
being told we are here tonight to comment on this. Seo
how can you comment on a document, how can you comment

on an aircraft, or anything which is half-baked and

You cannot. -

e

which is full of speculation?
What we do know, which is not

speculation, is where this aircraft will be flown.

10
i h
12
13
14
15
16
iy
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

And what we do know is it would be flown over low-
income and minority peopulations.
We have people here tonight,

businessmen, who say, you know, give it a chance. We

live in a community. We live in one community. And

if you care about those who will be most impacted by

this, I'd like tec hear somebody talk about it. Where

is the mitigation? Where is condemnation procedures?

It's not described in the DEIS. 1It's left for some

other day, just like, how noisy is this plane? That's

left to some other day.
2012,

January 30th, the game gets

changed. The noise is different. The decibels are
different. We have two elected officials who asked
that the F-35A be flown over. Why? They ask so it
wouldn't -- we wouldn't be sitting here speculating.

And all of us are speculating. Not just me, but every

person that's addressed this audience, and each of
these fellows in our Air Force. They don't know. Yet

we're trying to buy it. We deserve a flyover, and it

should happen so we don't speculate, and we know

exactly what we bought. Thank vyou.
COLONEL: ROAN: Thank you.
Terry Holpert.
MS. HOLPERT: Thank you. My name is
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Page 69
Terry Holpert. 1I've lived 1in Tucson for over 60
years. I was educated here, and I dedicated my career
to improving life in Tucson through creating access to
high education at the U of A..

I've lived near Broadway and Country
Club for almost 40 years. Despite the lure of the
foothills, where lots of you who are here tonight
live, my husband and I chose to raise or kids in
midtown, because we were committed to creating and
sustaining a thriving central city. We believe that
in order for Tucson to flourish, the core of the city
could not be hollow. People needed teo, live, work and
contribute there. That's what we've tried to do.

I oppose the F-35 in Tucson because it
would endanger the health and safety of large numbers
of city residents, including people who attend the U
of A, work at the U of A and work downtown. We'wve :g$7
already heard from the people who live and work in the
Tucson mountain area who would also be seriously
affected.

The F-35 is claimed as the most

extensive and the noisiest plane ever produced, with
NO-1
SA-1
NO-36

an uncertain safety record, would subject citizens to

ear-shattering noise, and the dangers of crashes, and

general erosion of the quality of life, from hearing NO-6
NO-16
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problems to learning deficits, to high blood pressure, :8f6

to inability for people to use their own back yards. ] conrd
We live in Arizona, where back yards

i i . . NO-37

are important. The F-35 is not appropriate fer flying

over a city of over a million. The city of Tucson, —

countless business people have invested millicns of

dollars, their time, their talent, their energy in
SO-18
increasing the viability and livability of central

city. It seems like it's crazy to undercut that at

this point in time. Thank you.

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you.

Ms. Redding, and then Anita Scales.

3196 TU

MS. REDDING: My name is Mary Redding,
and I am here tonight as a concerned citizen. I would
like to make a public comment in support of the F-35
coming to the Tucson Air National Guard Station. When
you look at the factors that go in to selecting the
very best locaticn for a new jet, Tucson has it all.
The best airspace in the United Stats. 280 days of o
sunshine every year, and the proximity to major

companies and the aerospace industry. The Barry

Goldwater ranges are just west of Tucson, and are the

largest air-to-ground complexes in the world. _
History has shown that having the jets

in year-round gocd weather reduces training costs over
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the lifetime of the jets. Proximity to major
aerospace companies will encourage the development of
new technology.

Tucson has the opportunity to become
the center for aerospace and technology in the United
States at a time when economic growth is desperately
needed. As an aerospace center, Tucson will benefit
financially from the placement of the jets. It will
provide jobs, in turn raising the tax revenue,
spending at our local shops, and increase demand in
our housing. Tt will provide indirect jobs through
contractors, employees at stores around town, and in
the construction industry.

I understand that there is some
opposition to this plan. As with all development,
there may be small costs that we, as a community, have
to pay in order for our community to flourish. After
reading the Environmental Impact Statement, as a
concerned citizen, I am confident that all burdens to
our community are significantly outweighed by the
benefits. We look forward to welcoming the F-35 to
our community.

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you.

Ms. Scales and then Mr. Peter

Collins.

Page 71
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MS. SCALES: My name is Anita Scales.
I live in midtown, within 300 feet up an illusory 65-
decibel line of a contour someone drew on a map
without my knowledge a few years ago. Of course, I
live on the quiet side of the line. There are over
8,000 residents mentioned in the EIS who will be
impacted by the proposed basing of the F-35. These
people live within, or near, an illusory line too.
But I assert that the line doesn't prevent noise from
8,000 is a

entering the air on the other side.

fictional number. The line is fiction. Noise

spreads. Are these effective people clearly damaged?
Who will pay to mitigate their noise? How do you
mitigate noise on playgrounds or backyards? How do

you mitigate noise for a toddler? How do you mitigate

noise in mcbile homes? You don't.

So are there funds available to
purchase blighted and unlivable homes? 1 have not
read nor heard mention of such funds. Some rush to
embrace the F-35 sc blinded by their enthusiasm that
they fail to notice thousands of people who are just
collateral damage. The F-35 is unsuitable for Tucson.
COLONEL ROAN: Thank you.
Mr. Cecllins and Walt Thomas.

MR. COLLINS: Thank you. I'm Peter

Page 72
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Collins. I have been a resident of Tucson since 1986.
I want to address some of the things that have not
been addressed, starting with the EIS. I'm a retired
Air Force and Air National Guard fighter pilot. I
have 3,000 hours of experience in a single-engine
the F-100

airplane, the old single-engine airplanes,

the A-7 and then the F-16, and I haven't jumped ocut of
one yet.

I have 860 hours of combat time over
235 combat sorties in southeast Asia, and I flew for
21 years. I had an opportunity because of my
experience and because of my position I took with Air
National Guard Bureau to fly from virtually every Air
Force and Air National Guard base in the United
States. I was an instructor pilot for over 15 years.
I have trained students and I have flown in all the
ranges, most every range in the United States.

I came to Tucson from outside, and T
came to respect the people who work at the Tucson Air
Guard base. They are professicnals, they are serious.
And everything that has been said about them in a
positive manner, I support as a fact. I compare them
with the best in the world.

But alsc I came to Tucson and I saw

from an outside perspective the training environment

14
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in Tucson, and I want to address theose things in the

EIS that address that. First of all, the Air Guard
and the Air Force use the ranges out at the Goldwater
testing ranges tc the west of Tucson. They're not
only the largest ranges, but they are also the best
for training student pilots. You sit in the back seat
of a jet and you train a student. The Goldwater
ranges are absolutely the best, with the least impact
on pecple. I have flown in the four different bases
that are in the preferred status in this particular
study. Tucscn is by far better than Phoenix, because
of the impact of houses all the way around Luke
airbase, and all of the noise problems that I think
are going to occur at Luke. I have flown at Boise and
at Holloman, I think there are problems with both of
those bases.

The approaches to the Tucson airport
are on the outskirts of town. They are not over the
middle of downtown, and they present much less of an
environmental impact than has been addressed here, in
my opinicn. I believe the safety aspects which have
been discussed in the previous meeting about liwve
weapons being flown over Tucson doesn't exist. That
hasn't been in the syllabus in the Tucson training

manual for many, many years, and the Tucson Guard does
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Page 75
not fly live weapons over downtown Tucson.
The flight patterns involved are not
over downtown, they're cver the cutside edges of
Tucson. The impact, I believe, is significantly less GBS

than has been expressed by many people here. Thank
you.

COLONEL ROAN: Thank vyou.
Mr. Thomas, and Mr. Brad Richards. And

then following Mr. Richards, Ellen Jimenez.

3199 TU
MR. RICHARDS: Hi, my name is Brad

Richards. 1In the course of all these comments, I'wve

heard a lot of repeated themes. And one of those is,
we've had this long-term -- well, recently but
long-term culture of saying no to all these
opportunities coming to our community, and that hasn't
always been that way. There has been a new insurgence
of new leadership in our community. Some of those
pecple have spoken. Some of those people are about to

speak. And that culture is changing. I'd like to
communicate that to the Air Force.

We are recognizing that the Air Force
brings not only wvaluable jcbs, but excellent
individuals into our community. Truly upright men and
women that have a heart for community service. And
let's remember,

as a community, some of our very best
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citizens here came from their experiences at the Air
National Guard and from Davis-Monthan. Some of the
greatest community leaders we've had in this community
came here because they witnessed that -- that Tucson
is a great community. We don't want to undermine
that. We'd really like to communicate to the Air
Force the leadership that's happening in our
community.

You'll hear from some of those
excellent individuals today. We're bringing -- we're
changing this tide. This isn't going to be a
community of no for very much longer. Local
organizations are changing that. And we really
generally value the defense industry and the military
And let's face it,

presence here. change is always a

difficult thing. We're all going to reach a peint in
our lives where we want things to stay the same.

But remembering that as people come up
and new opportunities need to happen, our populations
are growing. These new opportunities need to exist.
We're looking at an aircraft that reduces air
pollution. You may or may not be aware, but aircraft
flying in our airspace produce far less pollution than
any vehicles on the ground ever could hope for.

Further, it's a less expensive aircraft
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to fly. So we talk about government spending. And I
promise you there's nc more consummate professionals
than people in command positions in aviation. Whether
it's civilian or military, safety is always the top
concern. They're not going to put a human being in
the sky until they're sure that aircraft is as safe as
it can possibly be before the wheels leave the ground.
Not only for their pilot's safety, but for the people
on the ground.

And there's no more consummate
professional than that pilet. If his aircraft has an
issue, that pilet is 100 percent committed to make
sure that aircraft goes does down the safest possible
place it can before he leaves it. I've known a lot of
pilots and that's their number one concern. The
aircraft has trouble, they want to get it away from
innocent civilian populaticons before they ever leave
that aircraft.

S0 I'd like to communicate te the Ailr
this is a

Force thank you for the EIS. 2And remember,

draft. We can point cut the discrepancies in the
draft, or things that haven't been addressed yet.
It's a draft. So let's welcome the Air Force. Let

them know the walue of their presence and communicate

to the Air Force there's new leadership coming through

Page 77
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Lo make this ar

aven more welcoming community te vou.
Thank you.
COLONEL ROAN: Thank you.
Ms. Jimencz and thea Ms. Lec
Stanfield.
MS. JIMENEZ:

Thank you. My name is

Ellen CJimenez. I do work in the tourism ndustry here
in Tucson. I'm chair of the military affairs
committee, whnich is part of the Tucson Chamber cf
Commerce., The military affairs commit-ee has been
supporting oir local Tucson military since 1929. Sa
that tells you a little kit about how long our
military has been here in Tucson, and how long they've
had a support base as well.

A coup_e ol Lhings: mnmy commenls are
mainly for oiar Alr Force and our military here in
Tucson versus the public out here. We want to say
thank you. We want te say thank you for offering this
hsaring. We want to say thank ycu for your servics
and thank youa for your sacrifices. We alsoc want to
say thenk youa for being here in 'lucson and choosing
Tucson as your home for the 162nd. And that has
actually keen here since 1937 as well.

We warl Lo say Lhank vou [or our

freedom, cur frescom of speech and for us being here
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today. We would not be here today if it was not for
you. We want to say that we appreciate having you as
our neighbors. We know that you live among us in our
community and in our own neighbors here in Tucson. We
want to thank you also for local support, and your
many volunteer hours that you do put back into Tucson,
whether they're shelters with our minorities, as I am
one as well.

The F-35 is a great, great jet to have
here in Tucson, and we want it here. The Tucson GE-3
community does support having it here. 2And we have --
we also know that the 162nd does an impeccable job of
training their pilots, and that you will continue to
do so; you have a great history of doing this. So I
just want to re-amplify that I support the Air Force.

I support its mission, and I support having you here

in Tucson. I support having the F-35 here in Tucson. ] GE-3
Our community also supports having you here in Tucson.

Thank you.

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you.

Ms. Stanfield, and then Mr. Jeffrey
Ceasar.

- 3201 TU
MS. STANFIELD:

My name is Lee
Stanfield, and I'm going to stick mostly to the DEIS.

This DEIS does not address the impacts of F-35s on

_ISOJ3
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Tucson's economy adequately. It admits that
construction jobs resulting from the F-35s constitute
less than cne percent of the total employment in Pima
County, and construction expenditures and the jobs
created would be temporary.

It also admits that because the F-35s SO0-13

cont'd
would displace the current F-16 at TIA, the net
increase in pilots and support personnel would be
small. However, it says nothing about the loss that
the F-35 ncise would impose on Tucson leisure and
hospitality businesses, which bring 1,400,000,000
annually to our local economy. It fails to analyze
the impacts of ncise created when two or more F-35s
fly in formation or in close proximity to one another,
which is almost certainly going to happen, especially ——
since it's an instructional aircraft. This is going
to be a training for pilots, and it's a one-pilot
aircraft. 1In corder tc have an instructor in the sky
with this pilot, they'd have to be in another plane.
The DEIS mentions the reaction of

individuals to a sudden and drastic increase of noise.
When noise levels increase abruptly by sixteen fold,
as when noise jumps from 50 to 90 decibels, Naze

individuals are startled and disturbed. This DEIS

tries to minimize this impact in almost all cases. It
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describes the decibel levels in terms of a broad
average that encompasses 24 hours per day for an
entire year., This is nct representative.

As a matter of fact, the noise
averaging used in this DEIS is totally inappropriate
for assessing flyover ncise impact on residents. When
you average in the gquiet time in between all the
flyovers for a 24-hour periocd, it's a blatant attempt
to profoundly water down the true noise impact on
residents. The insistence on the use of this tool in
both this EIS and the current Operation Snowbird EA is
an insult to our intelligence.

If your next-door neighbor fired a
cannon every two hours for 24 hours, this tool would
still assess that impact on you as negligible, a
finding of no significant impact. If there would
really be no significant impact, then why don't you do
a demonstration flyover?

This EIS should be scrapped and a new
one be done only after there's a sufficient amount of
time for the F-35 to actually have a track record to
determine the safety risk. 1In addition, the new EIS
must be done by a new subcontractor, one with a record
of true independence, lack of bias in favor of the Air

Force. 1Two, use appropriate tocls. Three,
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Page 82
transparency and clarity of explanations regarding NE-35
procedures and tocls. And four, comprehensive
coverage of all issues required by NEPA, including NP-36
cumulative impact. Thank you.

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you. Mr. Ceasar?
All right. Then Stanley Abrams, to be followed by
Susan Banner.
3202TU

MR. ABRAMS: My name is Stan Abrams.
I'm a businessman here in Tucson. For the record, 1
served in the Air Force, the Strategic Air Command
during the Cold War. When I moved to Tucson in 1960,
I also served in the 162nd Fighter Wing for about
three years. I'm not geoing to repeat a lot of things
that were said previously, but I will say the
following. And I want to go on record as telling you
that I live also at Broadway and Country Club. I have
a lot of acquaintance with aircraft from
Davis-Monthan.

I think the point here is as follows:
We can at times agree to disagree. But we have an
issue here that is significant for the future of this
community. I want to congratulate the Air Force, who
has taken a lot of comments about the EIS that
probably is not a perfect document. That's shocking.

It's not a perfect document. But it is a good
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document, and certainly the Air Force has made a
serious effort in order to present as much information
possible to the people in this community.

I thought about the last comment that
I'm about to make as to whether I should say it or
not, and I decided that I would. There comes a point
in time in which you live your life in a community, in
the state and in the nation, when perhaps you have to
a step back and think about are you willing to give up
and sacrifice a little bit of your comfort in order to
make sure that your children and your grandchildren --
of which I have 10 -- have the best possible way to
live in a land of freedom? Where they know that they
don't have to worry about walking out the door and
being in a situation that could threaten their life.
I'm not a war

So that's my comment.

hawk. I'm not somebody that wants to go, you know,

fight wars everywhere. But we are in a world that's

dangerous. And I commend the Air Force. My personal

experiences in the Air Force were valuable. I was a
very young guy. But I ask this community to lock at
the future, not only eccnomic future, but the future
grandchildren and

of your own families, your children,

whatever else you may have. Thank you.

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you.
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Ms. Banner and then Eelen Bayly.
M. BANNER: I am also not drunk. I
have a bad knee. I believe that the draft EIS is ncot
quite comgplete. I lived in central Tucson for 13
years. I've cperated a kbed and breakfast from oy
hotse in the Sam Hughes nelghborhcood ment_oned earlier
by Jo=y Flynn, the lawyer. 1I'm terrifica’ly bhothered
by the noise that happens every day in my life.

Last rght at one of the meetings, a
woman representing the hospitality industry said
Rardolph park -- Dounle Tree, excuss me —-- she said
that in 20 years, no cuest had ever complained about
the noise I checked the Double Tree hotel, and all
of them in tae country are listed as sound proof. I
Lhink & lcl of us az2 nol sound proof. AL leaslL 50
parcent of the guests who stay in my house comment and
complain about the planes, and I make up stories to
cover the noise,

The F-35 is much louder than the F-16.
Everybody agrees about that. But please Zet Tucson be
the judge oI the noise level by flying one of them
over us., And alsc, tell us how many planes, how mary
times & day, how many days of the week, ¢f the month,
we'll bs None

ol Lhs vear, subjecled Lo Lha. nolse.

of this is oatlined ir this draft EIS. We alsoc know
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the noise level varies depending on cloud cover and
precipitation, something that we have once in a while.

Several pecple at last night's meeting
also said they loved the sound of noise. I think
that's great for them. One of them was somebody who
apparently works on one of the runways, whose
businesses are there. I can certainly understand why
he would be in favor of noise.

I pulled up some information from a
place called McKinley Health and Hearing Center in
Illineis. And these are some of the things that they
said. If you think you've grown used to a loud noise,
it's probably already damaged your hearing. Exposure
to a single intense explosion can result in immediate
permanent hearing loss. As a general rule, noise may
damage your hearing if you have to shout over
background noise in order to be heard.

From the draft EIS, these are the K4
words, that subsonic and superscnic aircraft noise --
even though it said this is not true with supersonic
-- would increase, potentially reducing recreational
uses, environment, enjoyment of the natural setting,
that includes my backyard. So we think there's

significant information missing about this. Noise

associated with training activities would present a
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disproportionate —- this is from the EIS --
disproportionate and adverse environmental impact on

EJ-4
low-income populaticn in the vicinity of Tucson. I cont'd

have a couple more things, but that's the essence of
it. Thank you.

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you. We've
reached 8:00, which is our scheduled time to complete.
However, I believe we can continue on for a little
while longer. Again, I can't promise we're golng to

get to everybody. We'we just got too many. But I
think until at least 8:30.

3204 TU

MS. BAYLY: Hello, everybedy. That's

probably 50 decibels. This is a housekeeping remark
that the good colonel is permitting me to make before
I start my official comments; and that is, I think
it's outrageous that A, there is no water provided for
the audience tonight. I had to go out the back, beg
some of the members of the U.S. Air Force for a sip of

NP-11
It's my personal water.

any of their water. No, no.
Why don't you walk, you know, 100 yards down there to

the drinking fountain. That's one housekeeping point.

I am very angry about it. —
The League of Women Voters requires

that public meetings have adequate public

] NP-14
e

notification. The three minutes in a huge population
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NP-11
cont'd

] NP-28

NP-11

like this, per speaker, for two hours on evenings that

are in conflict with religious festivals and holy
ceremonies is really disgraceful.

This is my government agency that
doesn't know how to run a public meeting. There's no
water supply around for any of you. And three times
I've had to get up and be helped by a hero back there.
All right. Anyway, so it is your duty, Mister
Representative of the Government -- and I too can
salute. I was a Girl Scout.

And by the way, you'd be

interested to know, I am a feminist who battled to

make sure that women could enter the services. But at

the moment, you have to provide drinking water for

everybody. And I'll leave it at that for the time
being. But I really am very concerned about the et
dreadful way in which you have failed to organize
public meetings.

Okay. So my name is Helen Bayly,

B-a-y-1-y. Thank you fer your time. What about the

six pilots who were killed this morning over Utah?

What happened with theilr training, their Marines?

What happened with their training? They were training

GE-13
in the same landscape to prepare them for fighting,

flying helicopters in Afghanistan. But in Afghanistan

a month ago, six members of NATO went down, were
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killed when that helicopter went down.
T would like, since we're here, to

comment on the DEIS, not to talk about our adulation

I would like te add to

for this, that and the other.

the study, please, those of you who are listening,
that studies are of the psychologies of pilots. Why
have there been so many F-16 accidents? And I'd like
to hear from the guy who trains them all. I have
great respect for you. Sorry to point my finger. I
add the word respect to everything I say tonight. But
there have been a lot of accidents with people who you
claim to have trained.

And T would like it to be added to the

DEIS, please, with a whole new EIS statement, because

we don't know a thing. We have no tables for health

studies, danger studies, the airplane itself. We have

no knowledge. The whole study needs to be started
again. I endorse entirely -- so I don't have to
repeat comments -- what Robin Gomez said, what Lee
Stanfield said, what the wonderful woman from central
Tucson who brings people into education, what she
said. 1I'd like to endorse that, but I'll add to it.

I am on the board of directors of the
Time?

science fair. All right -- of the science

fair, and I bring intc town lots of Davis-Monthan
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airmen and women in order to run the biggest science
fair in Arizona, and we get some of the national
prizes.

So with that in mind, I have three
minutes. This is important, and so you'll get lots of
written information from this. Sorry to go over. I
didn't see the lady down there with the signs.

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you. We are
trying to keep time, but please, no personal comments.
Jean Dejong, followed by Michael Varney. 3205 TU

MS. DEJONG: Hi, everyone. I'm glad to

see everyone here, and everycne is participating in
this democratic process. T Jjust want to do a little

bit of history here. In 1978, there was a major crash

of the single-engine jet, an A-7 that just missed U of
A and Mansfield middle school.
And after that, the Air Force changed
the mission at D-M to A-10s and the National Guard
that we're talking about today was redirected out to
TIA. So that's when the National Guard ended up at SA-1
TIA, because the National Guard was flying and
continues to fly the single-engine jets that are most

dangerous to fly over an urban population of now a

million people, because they're single engines. If

one engines goes, it goes down. And especially a jet
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like the F-16 that is highly maneuverable, that the

pilot has difficulty maneuvering it. It has to be
steadied by a computer. If something happens teo that,
there's not a lct of control.

So you know, for almost 30 years, we
have had a midtewn Tucson that's been relatively
compatible with D-M. And because of that, what I
see -- somebody was talking about no, but what I see
is you started toc see the neighborhoods in midtown
Tucson begin to come back to life, begin to flourish.
We have million-dollar neighborhoods in the middle of
midtown Tucson.

The University of Arizona has gone up
in world class stature. The math and science
departments place 1l6th internmationally in
competitiveness. A&nd the reason that this sort of
thing happens 1s because you create a beautiful
environment that people want to move into and live in.
We moved here -- and I just wanted to make this point,
because I've heard this repeated several times, and I
really have a hard time accepting it. The success of
the aeronautics industry is not based on the F-35
being here. The success of the aeronautics industry
is based on a successful vibrant university. The high

tech industries comes here and high paying jobs come
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here because you have a vibrant and good educational
system. People who are going to come here in high
tech industries are not going tec come here if they've
got a lousy school system.

I have a friend who has a very
successful business here in town. She hires her
people from the university engineering department. If
the stature of that schcol goes down because you've
got F-35s flying overhead and the threat of a SA-1
single-engine jet crashing again into the city, you
may find things change very quickly.

COLCNEL ROAN:

Thank you. I'm going to

ask everybody to mind, as we've got a lot of speakers
in a certain amount of time, to watch Brianna up here
with the cards, so we can try to say as close as we
can on the three minutes.

Mr. Varney, and then Gabriella Mercer.

3206 TU

MR. VARNEY: Good evening. My name is

Michael Varney. I'm the president and CEO of the
Tucson Metro Chamber. I'm here today to make two
statements; one is professicnal, one is personal. I
come before you today on behalf of 1,350 member
businesses of the Tucson Metro Chamber and the 105,000
employees represented by those businesses. Given that

the sensitivity and consideration already shown by the
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Air Force to the environment in the DEIS, the Tucson
Metro Chamber supports the location of F-35A lightning
at the 162nd Air Naticnal Guard facility adjacent tc
Tucson Internaticnal Ailrport. Few locaticns in the
country offer the combination of airspace for military
training and favecrable weather conditions. The Tucson
area has a solid stake in the future of the aerospace
and defense industry, which currently generates 5- to
$6,000,000,000 a year in revenues in our area. That
means jobs, and jobs are badly needed in this
recessionary eccnomy. The 162nd Air Naticnal Guard
Fighter Wing employs 1,450 Tucson area residents.
Adding the F-35 to the 162nd's fleet of training
aircraft will bring more pilots and more support
industries to Tucson and Pima county.

The construction necessary to receive
the F-35 at TIA is estimated to require $175,000,000
in construction contracts, resulting in an increase of
around 2,000 badly needed construction jobs for our
community and your neighbors. The draft EIS speaks
for itself. We believe the 162nd has acquitted itself
admirably in demonstrating sensitivity to noise
abatement and safety issues. The 162nd and its new
fleet of F-35s will continue to be good neighbors.

Now for the personal note. Before
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moving to Tucson, I lived in Las Vegas for 14 years.

I lived in Summerland, a wonderful and heavily

populated area on the west side of the Las Vegas

valley. In 2008, FAA, for scme reason, changed the

departure corridor at McCarran International Airport,

the sixth busiest airport in the country, 500 flights

a day in and out of McCarran International Airport.

Where these flights used to turn left, they were now

directed by the FAA to turn right, or west. Hundreds

of flights per day right over my house. The mayor and

others protested. Nolse, accidents. Neighbors

protested. The sky was falling. The FAA stood firm.
We noticed the noise for about two or
three days. After that, it was wallpaper. Nobody has

lost their hearing or grown a third eye. The
mountains behind my house are still there. Houses are
still being bought and sold. Tourism at Red Rock
Canyon is still as high as ever. Life goes on.

The F-35 represents change in Tucson;

]GE-S

3207 TU

—'GEG

it's good change. Tucscn welcomes the F-35.

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you. Gabriella

Mercer, and then Ted Mercer.
MS. MERCER: My name is Gabriella
Saucedo Mercer, and 1 am here in support of the

proposed F-35 pilot training center, not only because
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it means jobs for the military, but training for our
national defense and security. Having the F-35
training center in our community means Jjobs,
desperately needed jobs, that will be created in
support of a training center.

Luke Air Force base and Tucson Air
Guard station are uniquely qualified for the training
of F-35 pilots. From our exceptional climate tc the
valuable airspace provided by the Barry Goldwater
range and Libby Army airfield. Tucson Air Guard
station is considered by many to be exceptionally
attractive for future F-35 operations, with its
potential to house as many as 72 joint strike
fighters.

The fiscal impact on the Arizeona -- on
the state of Arizona is one of the biggest arguments
for bringing the F-35 to Luke and to the Tucson Air
Guard station, which is the home of the 162nd Fighter
Wing, as many have already said.

Bases in the military station there
pump money into our local businesses. It creates
tremendous wage-earning jobs for those struggling to
find work during these tough economic times. With our

high unemployment rate, we need to keep the F-35 here;

sustaining our flying mission in Tucson through the
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year 2035 and beyond. gﬁ:

Regarding the noise? Well, every day I

hear the train go by. My husband promised me that

eventually T would get used to the ncise. Well, we'wve

been in Tucson since 2004, and T still hear the train,
even when I'm asleep. The noise the train makes means
that free enterprise and capitalism is working to
benefit our economy. As a military mom, the jet noise
means freedom.

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you.

3208 TU

MR. MERCER. I'm Ted Mercer. I'm a

resident of the City of Tucscn, and my wife and I live
in the glide path to TIA. Ever since we moved to

Tucson, we've been in that glide path. I am certainly

not bothered by it. It doesn't bother me at all. In

fact, as my wife said, I that's the sound of
capitalism at work.

I will say this: The company that I
work for spent five years and about ten million
docllars developing a noise suppression device for use
on the MD-80 commercial airliners. And as a part of
that whole process of gaining authorization by the FAA
to install that product on those airplanes, we had to
go through probably much, much, much more extensive

noise testing than is represented by these charts and

18

19

20

nN
N

envelopes that you have seen so far.

I can tell you this: You could test --
run these kind of ncise tests that you've heard
requested for another five years, and you would not be
any more sure of the results than you are tonight. It
depends upon the temperature, the humidity, the

barometric pressure, the direction the wind is

blowing, the intensity of the wind, and how hard that
pilot has his hand on that accelerator. And all of
those things will change -- you can fly two identical

aircraft, one right behind the other, over the test
field and you will get different results. The
altitude also plays a role, as does the cloud cover.
So arguing for extensive testing to
perfect the decibel level that you're experiencing, it
It's a guess,

just ain't going to happen. at best,

and that's just the reality of it. You're never going
to get a perfect guarantee that there is no risk of an
airplane falling out of the sky. It happens. In
fact, it happens more often with commercial aircraft
than it does with military. The military does a
wonderful job.

My company is located within a quarter
of a mile of the airport runway. We hear those

airplanes taking off every morning and every
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afternoon. 1It's a wonderful sound to me. But
depending on which direction the wind is blowing, with

the intensity of that wind, it can be noisy. That's
true.

We heard objections from people who
were within proximity te the aircraft, the landing

patterns, and so on and so forth. Those people knew
when they bought their homes that they were living, or
going to live in the glide path of an airport. And
probably most of them signed a disclaimer that they
recognized the risks associated with that. That's
just reality.

The eccnomic impact I think has been
touched on. I think we need the jobs in this
community. The impact of the loss of those jobs would GE-3
have a horrible impact upon the economy of this
community, which is already struggling to survive.

Thank you for your time.

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you.

3209 TU

MR. JOSSERAND: Of course people can

adapt to almest anything, but that does not mean
adverse stimuli are harmless. Some sincerely claim to
not notice any harm from the current overflights. But
so many smokers also were sincere in their denial, and

it still impacted their health, and many died.
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The enthusiasm on the part of those in
favor of the much louder F-35 is overwhelmingly
economig¢, although it leaves out large components of a
true economic assessment of pros and cons, especially
for the long term.

The welfare of the city of Tucscon and
the University of Arizona -- which was here a long
time before the airplanes -- are on a collisicn course
with the noise and safety issues of Davis-Monthan.
It's a train wreck that is well under way, but it does
not have to continue. Either D-M can buy out the
University of Arizona and central Tucson, or reverse
its expansion.

In actual fact, brining the F-35 is
spending money to make Tucson an unlivable city for
now and decades to come, and that does not count the
huge cost to health and well being. Proponents make
an emotional appeal tc patriotism and the fears of
terrorism. However, the F-35 does little to fight
terrorism.

Time-tested wisdom enshrined in
documents from the Magna Carta to the Constitution
discourage making decisions on an emotional basis.
Despite that, emotional decision-making has brought us

the Patriot Act and the new NDAA, which allows the
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president to use the military to detain anyone, even
American citizens, indefinitely without charge or
counsel or trial.

Abraham Lincoln said, As a result of
the war, corporations have been enthroned in an era of
corruption, and high places will fcllow, and money and
power of the country will endeavor to prolong its
reign by working upon the prejudices of the people
until all wealth is aggregated in a few hands and the
republic is destroyed. I feel more anxiety for the
safety of my country now than ever before, even in the
midst of war. Abraham Lincoln said that five minutes
before he was assassinated.

Please do not take my remarks as an
attack on capitalism or on defense. It's true that
defense is wvital to our freedom and prosperity, but it
cannot provide prosperity. It consumes wealth at an
enormous rate. Although it ensures our ability to
create wealth, it is a net deficit to the national
treasury and making it a cash cow is not patriotic.

The F-35 is made in 43 states not by
chance. It was an orchestrated mansuver designed to
turn the people's combined patriotism and fear into a
We're the

cash cow. How rich do we have to be?

richest nation in the world. No one as ever lived
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bstter than than we do. We can get zlong.
COLONEL ROAN: Thank you.
Maureen Tozzi? &nd I'm sorry. The one
following is a little hard te read. Iz's RihZ,
Ri=i=hmla
3210 TU

MS. TOZZI: Hi, I'm Maureen Tozzi. I
work in the acspitality industry, but I'm rea’ly hesre
to support thae 162nd. I'm on the milizary affairs
committee. I'm glad war was brought up, because there
are two things we can be guaranteed of; there is war
and there is peace. And I'm happy thaz we will have
the leb:znd and our allies and that they'll be here in
Tucson to support us. You know, it's our allies that
wa're training, and tkat's an importenz thing tc ksep
in mind,

We n=ed to be competitive in Tucson,
and change is coming. Let's change the no to let's
compromise, because nc is not conducive to change.
Yot know, we need to work together.

Acdditicnally, with the EF-35, rean,
w2're only going to be competitive so long with the

GE-3

FP-16. Let's support cur military. Bring it home, the

I'-25 to Tucson, and let's bring change about. Thank

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you.
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Jamie Shrimmer. 3211 TU

MS. SHRIMMER: I want to thank all of
those who have remained behind tonight after the 8:00
time. It's so hard to decide what to say because
there's been so much said. But I would like to say
that you know, not -- it's not true that everyone
wants the F-35, and it's not true that most Tucsonans
want the F-35.

It's because most Tucsonans don't even
know what the F-35A is. Most Tucsonans are too busy
working two jobs and trying te be at home and make
food for their children and pay the rent. They don't
have time to speculate cn what has not happened yet.
And if you were to ask the general population, Are you
Because

for the F-35 or against it? They don't know.

it is all speculation. There is no such thing.
What 1s true in most people's lives is

what they do want and they think they should be abkle

to have. Most people want to continue living in their

homes. They may have trouble meeting the mortgage, NO-3
NO-16

but they want to live in their homes. Most people S0-23

want to continue living in a home with unbroken window
panes. Most people want to be able to sit outside and

watch a sunset, or have dinner on the porch or let the

kids play outside.

10
i h
12
13
14
15
16
iy
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Page 102

Most people want to be able to hear the

birds and the scunds of nature. Most people want to

take a recreational hike when they can. Most people NO-3
NO-16
S0-23
cont'd

want to see blue skies and not contour trails, and
most people want to be able to sleep without
disturbance. These is not addressed in the EIS. The
quality of life is not there. And I think that the
F-16, the F-18, the F-22 has already taken a big bite
out of our quality of life. And I don't live in a
flight path, yet I hear planes rumbling, flying over
me morning, noon and night, and sometimes through the

NO-3
They set off car alarms and house alarms. NO-8

night.
I live near the elementary schocl,
where there are nights where the children do not get
more than an hour of sleep at a time because of planes
flying overhead, when we don't even live in flight
path, and we live eight miles from the base. I'm
afraid the F-35 will take that final bite out of the NO-16

qualify of 1life and there will be none left for any of

us here. Thank you. —

CCLONEL ROAN: Thank you.

Barry Soulvie, and then Barbara Harper

will be all the time that we have this evening.

3212TU

MR. SOULVIE: My name is Barry Soulvie.

I'm a former member of the 162nd Fighter Wing. I'm
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proud to say that. I'm retired and I work in the
retiree's office out there, and soc cobviously I'm pro :]GEJ
F-35.
But I'd like to go back to when I was a
I'm a native. And

little kid. I was born in Tucscon.

I've been here a long time. And I remember when I was
just a little kid, preschool, and we were involved in
World War II. And I remember those airplanes flying
over my house, because I lived in the area of Tucson
Boulevard and 22nd, and those airplanes would come
over my house. And my parents would reassure me that
those airplanes were our airplanes, and not somebody
else's. BAnd as a little kid, you know, I had some
concerns of what you hear about the war, because you
didn't really know or fully understand what was going
on. So finding out that those airplanes were
friendly, they were our plans, that was reassuring to
me.

So I watched things evolve at
Davis-Monthan. I saw B-24s, B-17s and it evolved and
went to B-47s and B-52s. And B-52s were very loud.
They also had KC-135s. And I remember very well
KC-135s, because those airplanes sitting on the runway
at Davis-Monthan, full power with a full load, you

could hear those airplanes when they were still on
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their takecff rolling on the ground.

Anyway, this whole thing evolved. And
in the mid-'70s, the Air National Guard had a saying
that jet necise was the sound of freedom. And I still
agree with that, because without that sound of
freedom, we wouldn't have the freedoms that we have
today. We wouldn't have the privilege of coming here
with the opposition, and then those people for the
F-35 fighter sit here and have their say.

So I want to say that, you know, with
noise comes power, with power comes freedom, because
the only way we have our freedom is because we have a
Sc think about that.

strong military. And you know

what? If you lock up in the sky and you see those

airplanes up there, those airplanes belong to us, and

that's a good thing. That's why we have cur freedom.

Thank you very much.

COLONEL ROAN: Ms. Harper?
3213TU
MS. HARPER:

Good evening. My name is

Barbara Harper. I'm a professional pilot and aviation
safety consultant and a flight instructor. As a
member of the Aircraft Owners and Pilots Association,
and the International Society of Women airline pilots,
I'm totally for supporting the F-35A in Tucson.

] GE-3

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you. We will have
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one more speaker. Ms., Abby Rocad. 3214TU

MS. ROAD: Thank you for this

accommedation. Earlier tonight I heard somebody say
that our population is growing. Really, our

population is aging. Our birth rate is down. And as
our population ages, pecple are loocking for wonderful
places to go and live where they can live out their
days peacefully, enjoying the quality of life that
they've always looked forward to in their retirement
years. People like me may have toc be forced to retire
maybe much sooner than they ever expected. Being a
disabled citizen, I'm home all day.

I try te go cutside. T try to sleep.
I try not to watch things fall off my walls when the
planes go overhead. I call the Alr Force base, and I
tell them, Wow, that one scared me. That one was
really low. And they're not suppcsed to be so low
that I can see the guy waving at me out the window, or
read the numbers on the bottom of the plane. It's
really frightening.

I think that ocur quality of life is
going to be effected negatively, if bigger, noisier NO-36
F-35 planes come here, because not only is our
population aging -- and I don't know if you realize

this; Tucson particularly is a very service-oriented

10
i h
12
13
14
15
16
iy
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Page 106

community. That's because we have a high dropout rate

3

in our schools. We have a lot of people available for

very low-income-paying jobs, That's why there's
McDonald's on every corner and fast food restaurants
and drug stores everywhere, and supermarkets, and
little corner guickie mart kind of things, because
we're a service-oriented community.

But what we don't have is young people
training how to take of our elderly houses. My house
is more than 65 years old. It was built around the
time that the airport was built. Most of the houses
in midtown Tucson are post World War II track homes.
A lot of the homes downtown and in the historic
district are even older than that. They're made of
even more fragile materials.

Young people in the community are not
being trained how to do these repairs. So the older
people that have been repairing our homes up to this
time are retiring, are aging, and there's ncbody to

fill in and take care of our homes now. So as they're 7

NO-12
detrimented by the shaking of the planes flying

overhead, and the quality of life for the people who

are retired, it's time to sit in their yards, like the
NO-36

last -- many speakers tonight have talked about the

qualify of life, and the loss of that quality of
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life. NO-36

cont'd

T really want the government and the

military to please reccnsider that Tucson is not a

GE-4
good option for placement for our F-35 system for
training, because this is an attractive place. I love

snowbirds. I love their money. I want them to keep
coming. I think they're a bigger part of our economy,
our tourism industry. The beautiful area that we live
in needs to be protected in every way possible for
future generations. And if you allow a short-term
entity like this to come in and destroy everything in
50-10

the future, we will have no legal recourse in the
future to protect ourselves.

S0 please stand together as a community
and keep reiterating your feelings to the government
in writing and orally, and to the community. Thank
you very much.

COLONEL ROAN: Thank you, ma'am.
Again, I apologize that we have run out of time. I
thank you for your time and interest in the F-35A
training basing EIS proposal.

And again, tonight is not the end of
your opportunity to participate in the review process.
Written comment sheets are available at the

registration table, and you can turn these sheets in

3%
3%

in tonight, or mail, or fax them. The mailing address
is printed on the comment sheets. The Air Force
welcomes public comments in writing at any time during
the Environmental Impact Analysis process. But to
receive consideration, they must be submitted by March

l4th of 2012. Thank you and good night.

(Public Hearing and Oral Comments Concluded at 8:24

1

p.m.
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AIR FORCE PUBLIC HEARING

MCNDAY, FEBRUARY 27, 2012

6:03 P.M.

COLONEL HARNEY: Good evening, ladies and

t

ime is now 6:00 p.m., and we'll go

gentlemen. The
ahead and begin the hearing.

Thank you very much for coming out tonight

public hearing for the F-35A Training Basing

ronmental Impact Statement.

&)
=
<
)

larney, and I'll

0]

H

(0]

My nam Colonel MaryBeth
be your hearing officer tonight. I'm a judge on the
United States Air Force Court of Criminal Appeals in
Washington, D.C., and sometimes and my colleagues
assist with hearings like this.
don't work for anyone at the Boise Air

Guard Station or the Air Education and Training
Command. I'm not involved in any way with the
development of the Draft EIS, and I don't act as a
legal advisor to the Air Force representatives
working on this proposal.

My role in the hearing tonight is simply to
be an impartial moderator to ensure that we have a
fair, orderly, and impartial hearing where you have

the opportunity to make comments on the proposal.
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Tonight's hearing is being transcribed, verbatim, by
Andrea Check, who is seated next to me.

We're here tonight because the Air Force is
analyzing the environmental impacts of the proposed
establishment of a Pilot Training Center with F-35A
training aircraft. The hearing is held in accordance
with the provisions of the National Environmental
Protection Act -- or Policy Act, excuse me, NEPA, and
regulations published by the Council for
Environmental Quality. The purpose of the hearing is
to receive your comments on the Draft EIS.

Tonight's hearing is just one of several
opportunities for public comment. Please keep in
mind that the hearing is not a debate, it's not a
vote on the Draft EIS, and it's not a
gquestion-and-answer session.

Rather, the hearing is an opportunity for
you to express your views and concerns about the
adequacy of the envircnmental analysis and potential
environmental impacts associated with the proposal,
as well as any issues related to the National
Historic Preservation Act process. Comments about
other unrelated issues will not assist in the
decision-making process.

Okay. During the first part of the hearing,

Page 4
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Air Force representatives will provide you with some
information about the project and the environmental
impact analysis process.

We have with us tonight Colonel Mike Nolan
from the Boise Air Guard Station, and from Rir Force
Education and Training Command, Lieutenant Colonel
Jon Wheeler, and Mr. Jim Holley.

One other thing, if it loocks like we're
reading to you, it's because we are (laughter). And
I apologize for that, but we prepare the
presentations in writing to ensure that we cover
everything for you and that all of the presentations
are the same.

After the briefings, we'll move to the
second part of the hearing to take comments from
those of you who would like to make a statement on
the record tonight.

Your comments, both written and oral, will
provide the decision-makers the benefit of your
knowledge of the local area and your concerns about
the environmental analysis.

At this peint, I will now turn the
presentation over to Colonel Nolan from the Boise Air
Guard Station.

COLONEL NOLAN:

Good evening. Welcome. My

Page
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name is Mike Neclan. I'm the director of staff for
the Idaho Air Natiocnal Guard right here in Boise,
Idaho.

On behalf of the United States Air Force and
the Idaho Air National Guard, I'd like to welcome you
to the public hearings for the F-35A Training Basing
Environmental Impact Statement, which I will refer to
as the EIS.

Hopefully ycu had the opportunity to talk
with the many knowledgeable experts staffing the
poster stations, and to learn more about the Air
Force's proposal, which is to establish a Pilot
Training Center with F-35A training aircraft at one
or more Air Force and Air Naticnal Guard
installations. Four alternative locations are
evaluated in the EIS, one being Boise Air Guard
Station.

Let's begin by reviewing the agenda for
tonight. 1I'll give a brief overview of Boise Air
Guard Station, and Lieutenant Colonel Wheeler will
discuss the F-35A training program and aircraft.

Next, Mr. Jim Holley will provide an
overview of the envircnmental impact analysis process

and the results specific to the Boise Air Guard

Station alternative.
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The last item on the agenda is the most
important, and that's the public comment sessicn, and
it's your cpportunity to provide information and to
make statements for the record.

This is one of three public hearings the Air
Fecrce is holding near the Boise Air Guard Station.

The Air Force is holding a total of 13 public
hearings to ensure the public has ample opportunity
to learn about and comment on the F-35A Training
Basing EIS.

Before we tell you about the comprehensive
EIS process and analyses, I would like to first
provide an overview of Boise Air Guard Station, our
mission and operations.

Boise Air Guard Station, or Gowen Field, is
home to the 124th Fighter Wing of the Idaho Air
National Guard, along with the Army National Guard.

Boise Alr Guard Station covers the southern
half of the Boise Air Terminal Airport and is
operated as a joint military/civilian facility. The
Boise Air Guard Station consists of an exclusive-use
military lease and a joint-use agreement between the
City of Boise and the military.

The installation has a rich history dating

back to World War II and today is the only joint

Page
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military installation in Idaho and the only National
Guard facility in the region focused on providing
Total Joint Force training.

The mission of the fighter wing is to
recruit and properly train Idaho Air National
Guardsmen, ensuring well-trained, well-egquipped units
are available for prompt mobilization during war, and
to provide assistance during emergencies.

The fighter wing includes 1400 full- and
part-time airmen and supports the 190th Fighter
Squadron, which operates and maintains the A-10

Thunderbolt IT aircraft. Currently, 18 A-10 aircraft

are assigned to Gowen Field. The F-35A aircraft that
we're discussing tonight are slated to replace and
supplement older aircraft such as the A-10.

This figure shows the training airspace and
ranges regularly used by the Bolise Air Guard Station.
This training airspace includes military operations
areas, military training routes, restricted areas,
and air traffic contrcl assigned airspace. This map
is also available in the handouts that you received
this evening.

As part of cur ongoing operations and
activities, we implement a variety of protective

measures to minimize impacts on our region and
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Page
envircnment from training activities. We're proud of
those efforts and our achievements.

Because of the many attributes that Boise
Air Guard Station offers, our installation is one of
four locations under consideration for the siting of
an F35-A Pilot Training Center and the aircraft.

I will now turn the presentation cover to
Lieutenant Colonel Wheeler to discuss the F35-4
training program and its aircraft.

Thank you.

LIEUTENANT COLONEL WHEELER: Thank you,
Colonel Nolan. My name is Lieutenant Cclonel Jon
Wheeler, and I'm a flight instructor with the Air
Education and Training Command.

The F-35A aircraft is an outcome of the
Joint Strike Fighter Program, which is a joint,
multinational program among the United States Air
Force, Navy, Marine Corps, and nine international
partners.

The Joint Strike Fighter Program merged
several independent government projects working on
next-generation strike aircraft. The gecal was to
build an affordable universal fighter that would meet

the needs of all participants.

Three versions of the strike fighter were

9
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developed to meet the varying coperational needs of
the military services. The Air Force version of the
aircraft is the F35-A, which is the conventional
takeoff and landing model of the F-35.

The F-35A is absclutely essential to the
nation's securities strategy. It is the newest and
most advanced fifth-generation fighter, and is needed
to deter and defeat 21st century threats.

The F35-A is intended tc be the Air Force's
premier strike aircraft through the first half of the
21st century, cffering low visibility, close- and
long-range air-to-ground and air-to-air capability,
enhanced precision strike capability, and
sophisticated electronic warfare capabilities.

The multifaceted F-35A would fulfill the
wide range of roles and missions currently conducted
by F-16 and A-10 aircraft, and would compliment the
F-22 aircraft,.

The F-35A is more effective than current
air-to-air

fighter aircraft in air-to-ground combat,

combat, reconnaissance, and suppression cof enemy air

defenses, and has a better range while reguiring less
logistical support.

Features of the aircraft that make it a

cutting-edge aircraft are low visibility,
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supportability, and weapons. The F-35A is designed
to cost less to operate and support than comparable
current-generation aircraft.

The Air Force has evaluated the potential
environmental impacts associated with the proposed
basing of F-35A training aircraft. For more
information about the environmental impact analysis
process and findings, I will now turn the
presentation over to Mr. Jim Holley.
MR. HOLLEY: Was that your idea?

Thank you, Colonel Wheeler. My name is Jim

Holley, H-O-L-L-E-Y, and I am with Headquarters Air

Education and Training Command. I'm also a project
manager for the F-35A Training Basing Environmental
Impact Statement.

The Draft EIS was prepared by the Air Force
to comply with the Natiocnal Environmental Policy Act,
or NEPA. The Draft EIS is an important part of the
Air Force's coverall commitment to environmental
stewardship.

The EIS was initiated in December 2009. An
early part of the EIS process included 23 public
scoping meetings, five of which were held here in
Idaho, to enable the public to provide input on the

proposed action, the alternatives under
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consideration, and environmental resources and issues
to be analyzed.

Government agencies, elected officials,
tribes, community and environmental organizations,
and individuals, were encouraged to submit comments
throughout the scoping pericd. The comments received
were considered in the preparation of this Draft EIS.

The Draft EIS is the result of extensiwve
analyses and consideration of public and agency
comments received during the scoping period. It is a
complex and comprehensive document, so I would like
to provide an overview of what it includes in its
findings.

The No-Action Alternative and a Proposed
Action are analyzed in the Draft EIS. NEPA reguires
federal agencies toc consider a No-Action Alternative
when preparing an EIS.

Under the Neo-Action Alternative, the
establishment of a Pilot Training Center and basing
of F-35A aircraft would not take place.

At each alternative location, the No-Action
Alternative constitutes baseline or current
conditions, and allows the decision-makers to compare
the magnitude of the effects of no action to the

effects of the proposed action.
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Page
As mentioned earlier, the Proposed Action is
to establish a Pilot Training Center with associated
basing of F-35A training aircraft at one or more Air
Force or Air National Guard installations.

Installations with adequate military

airspace and facilities are needed tec accommodate the
training of F-35A pilots and personnel. Training
would include the use of flare countermeasures and
authorized

supersonic flight, as permitted in

airspace. Training would also include the use of
munitions at approved military ranges, and the use of
auxiliary airfields to diversify training.

The Air Force evaluated four basing
locations in the Draft EIS. Each location is an
alternative for the purpose of this EIS.

Alternative locations are: Boise Air Guard
Station, Holloman Air Force Base in New Mexico, Luke
Air Force Base in Arizona, and Tucscn International
Airport Air Guard Station in Arizona.

The Air Force evaluated the potential
envircnmental impacts of establishing the F-35A Pilot
Training Center and Aircraft Training Squadrons at
each of these alternative locations The Air Force
analyzed the impacts of basing in increments of 24
aircraft,

from 24 to 144 aircraft, depending on the
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capacity, at the candidate installaticn.

Currently, the Air Force's preferred
alternative is to base the Pilot Training Center with
72 F-35A training aircraft at Luke Air Force Base.
However, no decisions regarding the proposal will be
made until after the environmental impact analysis
process is complete.

The environmental analysis for Boise was
conducted using three aircraft-basing scenarios, one
of which includes joint basing with the A-10
aircraft. As part of the analysis, the Air Force
assessed basing between 24 and 72 F-35A training
aircraft at Boise Air Guard Statien, as shown in this
aircraft-basing scenaric table right here.

If more than 24 F-35A aircraft were selected
for Boise Air Guard Station, the 18 -- the 18 A-10
aircraft currently stationed there would move to
another installation. Again, this information is
provided in the printed materials you received
tonight.

F-35A flight training activities at Boise
Air Guard Station would take place in extensive --
or, rather, existing military ailrspace and ranges.
No modifications to airspace would be required, and

proposed training activities would be consistent with
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existing airspace operations.

The Air Force analyzed potential
environmental consequences associated with changes in
personnel, construction or renovation of facilities,
and new training activities in existing military
airspace and ranges, and at Mountain Home Air Force
Base here in Idaho.

Specific resource category -- or categories
evaluated in the Environmental Impact Statement are
listed here.

Extensive details about the evaluatiocn of
each of these resource areas can be found in the
Draft EIS and in the summary fact sheet distributed
here tonight.

Public comments received during the scoping
period conducted in 2010 mainly concentrated on
potential noise impacts on the community, so we would
like to spend additional time on that topic here.

This is a noise contour map for areas
surrounding Boise Air Guard Station for baseline
conditions and for each aircraft-basing scenario

The blue line indicates baseline or current
conditions of 18 A-10 aircraft, and these subsequent
contours represent the three aircraft-basing

scenarios.

Peterson Reporting, Video & Litigaticn Services

Peterson Reporting, Video & Litigation Services

Z¢10¢ aunr

[eul



09¢-8'd

siduosueld] BulesH a1jqnd — 1usawinaoq asuodsay uawwo) — g Xipuaddy

Juawarels 19edw| [eluawuoliAug Buiseg Bulurell vse-4

10

il

12

14
15
16
17

18

20
21
22
23

24

The noise contours reflect the 65-decibel

day-night average sound level, or DNL, which is a
sound level averaged over a 24-hour period with an
adjustment for late-night noises.

65-decibel DNL is a threshold above which
certain land uses, such as residential, are not
considered compatible by the Federal Aviation
Administration or the Air Force, without measures to
ensure that interior noise level goals are met.

The Air Force analyzed the noise effects
associated with training activities on human
annoyance and health, physical effects on structures,
and biological, land use, sociceconomic, and cultural
resources.

Sound levels were analyzed for
noise-sensitive locations, which include local
schools, hospitals, and places of worship. The
methodology used to assess and guantify noise impacts
is more thoroughly described in the Draft EIS, and we
encourage you to review it in greater detail.

The analysis indicates that under baseline
conditions, 142 off-installation individuals are
currently affected by noise levels greater than
65-decibel DNL.

Under the various basing scenarios, the
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number of off-installation individuals affected by
ncise levels greater than 65-decibel DNL would
increase by approximately 3,000 individuals to 10,000
individuals.

A small percentage of F-35A aircraft
operations would occur after 10:00 p.m. As a result,
the likelihood of sleep disturbance, averaged —-
averaged among the locations studied, would increase
by up to 5 percent under the proposed-basing
scenarios.

The number of off-installation persons
exposed to outdoor noise levels greater than
80-decibels DNL would range from 0 to 313 persons
under Scenario B3. Exposure to noise levels above
80-decibels DNL for eight hours per day over 40 years
could increase the risk of partial hearing loss.

As shown previously, this is a map of the
training airspace and ranges regularly used here at
Boise Air Guard Station.

F-35A training operations would increase
subsonic noise levels on areas under training
airspace. Ncise created by ailrcraft exceeding the
speed of sound, or going supersonic, would increase

by less than one sonic boom per day under airspace

currently approved for supersonic training.
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Noise impacts from inert munitions training
at the Mountain Home Range Complex and live munitions
training at the Utah Testing and Training Range would
be similar to existing conditions and are not
expected to be significant.

The Air Force would continue to adhere to
all existing FAA and local avoidance procedures,
flight restrictions, and scheduling adjustments.

The EIS alsc provides detailed noise
analyses for Mountain Home Air Force Base, which
would serve as an auxiliary field for training
aircraft. The noise content -- contour map shown
here reflects the potential noise impacts from F-35A
training aircraft on areas surrounding Mountain Home
Air Force Base.

Under all training-basing scenarios there
would be an increase of five people or fewer in the
number of off-installation individuals affected by
noise levels greater than 65-decibel DNL.

The NEPA Process.

At this time, the Air Force has completed
the first three steps of the NEPA process. We are
now in the fourth step, which is providing the Draft

EIS for public review and comment.

This phase is an essential part of the NEPA
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process, because it allecws ycu, the public, to review
the Draft EIS and comment on the Air Force's analysis
of potential environmental affects.

We encourage you to provide your input here
tonight, or by March 14th, sco that it can be
considered for incorporation into the Final EIS.

The Air Force 1s committed to keeping the
community informed throughout the NEPA process. In
addition to holding these public hearings, the Air
Force has established a website to make it easier for
you to find and review environmental documents. The
Draft EIS is posted on the website, as well as
additional information.

You may also review a hard copy of the Draft
EIS by wisiting online -- or, correction, by visiting
one of five public libraries listed in the NEPA
handout you received tonight.

Comments on the Draft EIS may be provided
email,

orally or in writing here tonight, or by fax,

or mailing written comments to this address. All of
this information is provided on the comment forms and
on the project website.

This concludes the briefing part of the
hearing. Thank you for your attention and your

attendance.
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Page 20
Colonel Harney?
COLONEL HARNEY: Thank you, Mr. Holley.

So we'll now move into the public comment
part of the hearing, and I'll explain how that works.

So I will use the speaker signup cards that
those of you who want to speak filled out previously,
and I will call people up to the microphone. If
you'd like to make an oral comment here tonight and
you haven't yet filled out one of these cards, just
raise your hand right now, and we'll make sure that
you get cone to fill out.

Now, if we've heard from all of the —- I
think we've got everybody. If we've heard from all
of the speakers before 8:00 p.m. tonight, then I'l1l
recess the hearing and Ms. Check and I will remain
here at the table until eight o'clock to take your
statement, if vou decide that you would like to say
something on the record here this evening.

Basically, the procedure works like this:
Each speaker gets three minutes. When I call your
name, come on up to the microphone, and Allison,
who's the individual that's handing out the cards,
she will start the clock when you're ready.

To help the court reporter, Ms. Check,

please begin by stating your name and the name of the
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Page 21
organization, if any, that you represent. It will
also help her out a lot if you would spell your last
name for her. That's to make sure everything in the
record is correct. Please don't provide any other
personal information, like your home address or phone
number.

Again, your comments are recorded verbatim,
and they'll be used to develop a transcript and
permanent record of this meeting and will be
published in the Final EIS.

Your name will be included, along with your
comments, and will be in the Final EIS, but your
personal home addresses and phone numbers will not be
published in the Final EIS.

Now, of course, you don't have to speak for
the full three minutes. And to help you keep track
of time, Allison will show you a yellow card when vyou
have about 30 seconds left, and a red card -- so now
she's showing you the yellow card -- and then a red
card when your time is up (laughter).

So when you see the red card, please go
ahead and conclude your comments at that point so
that I can call on the next person. You don't need
to yield any remaining time to somecne else I'11

just move on to the next speaker when you're
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Page 22
finished.

Also, because it takes too much time to set
up any individual electronic presentations, we won't
do that, but those certainly can be submitted as
written comments later on.

Now, tonight's hearing is scheduled, as I
said before, to end at 8:00 p.m. If everyone who's
signed up has had a chance to do so before that time,
I'11 ask if any speaker would like another three
minutes to expand on your comments.

If you want to de that, just let me know,
and we'll put another three minutes back on the clock
for you. Again, Ms. Check and I will remain here at
the table to take your statement if you decide you
want to comment after we recess. I know this sounds
a little confusing, but it will all work out, you
will get to be heard within the time that we have.

If you want to add something later to your
oral comments or you would rather not speak here
tonight, you can submit written comments, as
indicated previously, at any time up to March 1l4th,
2012. There is no page limit on written comments,
and the Air Force gives equal weight to both oral and

written comments, and both become part of the

official record and are included in the Final EIS.
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Okay. Just a few other reminders, and this
is -- some of these will be by way cof repetiticn.
Please limit your comments to the Draft EIS that is
the purpose cof the public comment period.

Second, if you agree with the previous
speaker on something, you certainly can say that, but
you don't need to use up your time repeating what
that person's already said, since it's already in the
record.

And, finally, as I mentioned earlier, this
isn't a question-and-answer session. It's an
opportunity for you to put on the record your views
and concerns about the proposal that you want the
decision-makers to consider.

Questions that you pose during your comments
will become part of the record and will be
considered, and after we're done with the formal part
of this, Air Force representatives will continue to
be available afterwards to discuss things with you.

With that, I will call our first speaker.
And, basically, what I'm going to do is I will call
the first speaker and then the next name after that
so you can kind of get ready to wander up here to the

microphone.

So the first speaker is Lieutenant Governor
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Page 24
Brad Little, sir. And after that will be Terry
Regelin.

3215 B0
LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR LITTLE:

Thank you,
Colonel.

Well, I -- you know, for the public input
part, I think that the Draft EIS pointed out the
issues that a lot of us in Idaho are concerned about.
We're, obviously, very interested in the mission that
-— at this facility out here, given the quality of
the pecple that serve out there in our great
airspace. Tt's going tec be a great asset for not
only Idaho but for the United States, and, in my
mind, also world peace.

But I believe that given the results of the
EIS -- well, frankly, first off, I believe that the
cost structure that might have been pulled into the po-s4
EIS, knowing what I know about construction costs
here in Idaho, look pretty high to me, but I also =
believe that the option of the third runway, to
address what I believe is the most critical -- what I NO-20
-- we hear about, is the nolse issue is something

that we need to continue to look at.

I realize that the F-35 program is a dynamic
-- 1s a much -- a little more dynamic than we all

thought it would be originally. And given the
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dynamics of the Defense Department, I think we need
to continue to work at where we can get efficiencies
in it and where we can address concerns of not only
the airport but the local communities, given the
noise level.

So I think we need to continue to lock at
this program and -- but for Idaho, those 2500 jobs is
very critical. Because everywhere I go in the
Treasure Valley, one of the critical concerns of
people are the jobs and the high-quality jobs.

So I agreed with most of the things in the DO-53

EIS, but I did question the cost structure. 2And I —

also believe that there's a little more work that can

NO-20
be done to address the noise concerns of the

community.
So thank you very much. Thank you, Cclonel.
COLCNEL HARNEY: Terry -- and I apologize 1if
I don't get your name correct. Terry Regelin,
followed by Harry Mitchell.
3216 BO
MR. REGELIN: Yes. I, basically ——- I've
lived here in the Valley a long time, and when I hear
these jets and stuff training and the people training
and stuff -- I'm a veteran, and without them making
noise, I feel I'm losing my freedom.

And it's real plain and simple, I can live
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with a lot of nolse for these people giving me my
freedom to live the way that I do today. I look at

the pros and cons of it, and, yes, there is some
noise, but we hear jets taking off on a daily basis
over this area right here -- every day clear up until
12:30 at night. 1It's not a ceonstant noise that
they're doing.

So to weigh the difference between the pros
like Brad said, 2500 jobs,

and the cons, the boost of

the economy. I don't know of anybody -- I don't, in
this room -- that can drop $26 million worth of
revenue into our economy. Soc I don't see anything

against it, you know. TIt's all to our benefit. And

the biggest thing of it is, as long as I hear that
noise, I know I'm free.

COLONEL HARNEY: Harry Mitchell. And I
would just also like to remind the speakers that as
you come up, in order to help the court reporter, if
you would say your name and then spell your name.
After Mr. Mitchell we have Monty, I think
it's Mericle.
MR. MITCHELL:

Good evening. My name is

Harry Mitchell, M-I-T-C-H-E-L-L. I'm also a Vietnam
vet. I also have a little bit of a hearing problem;

some of it caused by a lot cf loud noise. live
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southeast of here -- or southwest, rather.
T hear the A-10s coming over all of the
time. Those A-10s are like a Volkswagen Bug gcing by

compared to what these A-35s [sic] are. We need to
be very concerned about the impact of the noise on
our community and the flight paths and the altitudes
that these jets will train, not only daytime flights,
but nighttime flights.

And I know we'wve got to get our boys
trained. I have a nephew that's 18 years Air Force
that's over in Afghanistan right now that keeps these
birds in the air. It has nothing to do with hearing
about your freedem; it has everything to do with your
quality of life.

I love the military, I respect the service
you've given to our country, but I want to make
doggone sure, that in the community that we live in,
that our guality of life is held to a higher standard
than in other areas.

I don't know why these facilities couldn't
be done down in Mountain Home. There's a nice Air
Force base down there. It's only 40 miles south of
here. I understand the issue with having to build
housing to accommodate the number of people that will

come in for the training, but that's something that
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should be factored into the cost of doing these
training facilities.

I just think that there's a lot more that
needs to be put out to the public about the noise
impact, the flight patterns of these aircraft, and
that the safety of the community while these young
men are training to defend our country is taken into
Not only their safety,

consideration. but our safety

here on the ground as well.

Thank you.

COLONEL HARNEY: Thank you very much, sir.
(Applause.)

COLONEL HARNEY: Monty —--—

MR. MERICLE: Mericle.

COLONEL HARNEY: -- Mericle followed by
Charles Thomas.
M-E-R-I-C-L-E.

MR. MERICLE: Monty Mericle,

I'm a spokesperson for Savecurvalleynow.org, and I'm
going to read this because I conly have three minutes.
I have a lot of information teo try to get across, so
let's start.

The Draft F-35A Environmental Impact
Statement for the Boise, Luke, Tucson, Holloman Air
Force Base Training sites is seriocusly flawed with

errors and omissions and canncot be used as the basis
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for the Final EIS or the NEPA record of decisicn.
There are too many serious deficiencies that must be
addressed first as outlined in the list that follows.
I'm requesting an indefinite stoppage or
postponement of the —-
COURT REPORTER:

I'm sorry. Can you slow

down?

MR. MERICLE: 1I'wve only got three minutes
(laughter). I'll submit it in writing, but I want it
on the reccrd -- until the deficiency of the Draft

EIS are corrected.
Number One. There are no definitive dB

loudness boundary maps, studies, or numbers clearly

and consistently published for the F-35. The F-35 is

eight times as loud as the A-10s, by the way. As the
off-site loudness has been shown to cause hearing
damage, 1t's essential that the area maps show dB

magnitudes at all sensitive areas. L max, not L

average. These measures or estimates already exist
since they're required to develop the DNL measures in
the EIS which was listed for all sensitive locations.
ITtem Two. Over 10,000 residents will find
their homes as -- reclassified as not suitable for
residential use if the F-35s are brought in. This

will result in tens of millions of dollars of lost
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property value. 1It's essential that a full
house-by-house appraisal and valuation be done.
Item Three. Over 1,000 residents will be
exposed to very high noise levels due to the
unusually close proximity of residential houses to
the runway. 1,400 afterburner takeoffs will occur

annually. It's in the EIS. It is essential that a
full noise study be done of the afterburner noise
situations, not full military power.
Item Four. 4 schocls and 13 daycare centers
will be in very high DNL and noise magnitude areas.
What mitigations will be dcne to avoid deteriorating
learning levels, which is a proven result of high
noise levels. This must be studied in depth.
The World -- Item Five. The World Health
Organization states that a DNA level of 50 and above
can cause health and mental problems. It's essential
that the EIS include value maps for 50 DNL, 55 DNL,
and 60 DNL. Just because they aren't on the map
dcesn't mean they don't exist.

Item Six. Several thousand residents will
be exposed to DNL and magnitudes above the 65 multi
DNL boundary maps --

MS. TURNER:

Sir, you have to slow down or

she's not going to be able to capture it.
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MR. MERICLE: 1I'll submit this, and she
can -—-—

MS. TURNER: But she doesn't see that.

COURT REPCORTER: You still have to --

MR. MERICLE: Okay. Are you going to stop
me, then, if I slow down?

MS. TURNER: Sir, you need to slow down or
it won't be captured.

MR. MERICLE: Okay. Item Six. Several

thousand residents will be exposed to DNL at
magnitudes above 60 tc 65 DNL. Multi DNL boundary
maps and studies are needed for 70 DNL, 75 DNL, 80

DNL, 85 DNL, and greater than 85 DNL. And what
mitigation will be used to avoid the severe health,
mental, and financial impacts in those areas?
Item Seven. In order for indiwvidual

homeowners to understand their options, a
residence-by-residence list of all properties and any
and all avigation easements and legal incumbrances
imposed by the city, the state, and the county that
incumber each property is required.

Ttem Eight is present clarification of the
"No Action Alternative." This -- we think this means
all four locations will continue to be candidates for
basing.

They'll be pre-scoped, pre-stockpiled, and

Page 21

NO-4

NO-6

S0-2

DO-1

J |

DO-2

Peterson Reporting, Videc & Litigation Services

Peterson Reporting, Video & Litigation Services

Z¢10¢ aunr

[eul



89¢—8'd

siduosueld] BulesaH a1jqnd — 1uawinaoq asuodsay uawwo) — g Xipuaddy

Juawalels 19edw| [eluawuoliAug Buiseg Bulurell vse-H

10
24,
12
13
14
G
16
17
18
19
20
2L
22
23
24

25

activated as they're needed. We'd like clarification
on that.

Item Nine is the EIS states that the F-35s
in Boise will contribute over 250 tons of additional
carbon monoxide to the area around Boise. This is
250 percent more than allowed by the EPA rules. The
Air Force mitigation is to request an exemption.

This doesn't mean that the CO -- carbon
monoxide isn't going to be there. Analysis of the
health impacts on residents, especially children, is
required, as are financial impacts of Boise becoming
EPA noncompliant on air gquality standards.

Item 10. What are the next steps in the bed
down process for the Final EIS? Will actions be
taken to reconcile the airspace and land use
conflicts that are identified by the EIS due to
bringing F-35s in?

Will joint land use studies be authorized?
Will zoning ordinances in conflicted areas be
enforced? Will rezoning occur? Will a program be
initiated to move residents cut of the various zones?

And the last one: Is the Air Force -- will
the Air Force bring several F-35s to Boise to conduct
a typical training routine of 50 sorties, five

takeoffs under full afterburner, and five takeoffs
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and landings at night, measure the loudness and let

the residents of Boise valley hear the future for GE-2
cont'd

themselves (applause). If the Air Force is unwilling

to do this, please list the reasons why.

MS. TURNER: What's the last part?

COURT REPORTER: "If the Air Force isn't

willing to do this."

MR. MERICLE: Oh, if the Air Force is

unwilling to do this, please list the reasons why.
(Applause.)

COLONEL HARNEY: Charles Thomas followed by
Greg Gempler.
3219 BO
MR. CHARLES THOMAS: Which Charles Thomas?
We've got two Charles Thomases.

COLONEL HARNEY: Charles E. Charles E.

MR. CHARLES THOMAS: Charles E? Thank you

(laughter) .

COLONEL HARNEY: What are the odds of that?

MR. CHARLES THOMAS: I would first like to

thank the Rir Force for everything they do for ocur

country, for their -- first of all, for the country.

But I have to guestion their baseline conditions that
were brought forth by this gentleman. And where did
DO-55
they get this information?
I saw the map, and,

you know, I disagree
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with it. I live on Cloverdale and Franklin, and when
an F-15, -14, or -16 takes off, punches in the
DO-55
afterburners, I can't hear my TV, it rattles my oty
windows. And you say the decibels are similar to an
A-10. No, sir, they are absclutely not.

Thank you for all of this information. It's
wonderful information on the F-35. $26 million for
the immediate community, that's -- that's wonderful
news, but as stated by this individual, it is either
an Alr Force or National Guard installation that the
F-35s are going to come to.

We have -- I'm a pilot. You're seven
minutes from Mountain Home Air Force Base. Why do we

need the F-35 here in the most populous area in

i

daho? We have one of the most premier living
conditions, as far as I'm concerned, in the United
States. We do not need it impeded with this noise.
Has anyone heard an F-357 They -- ah, right NO-37
over there. They are sc loud that if you think Kuna
is going to be not impacted by this, then you're
sadly mistaken. And that's why I really have a
problem with the studies that have been done on the

noise levels and the decibels that this entire

community is going to be exposed to.

And, like I say, thank God for the Air
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Force, Every time there's a good air strike, I go,
yeah, you know. I'm a veteran. I'm a Vietnam
veteran, and I appreciate what the Air Force has
done, but we do not need it in the middle of this
community.

Thank you.

(Applause.)

COLONEL HARNEY: Greg Gempler followed by
Bob Gruenhage, G-R-U-E-N-H-A-G-E.

MR. GEMPLER: Hi. My name is Greg Gempler.
The last name 1s G-E-M-P-L-E-R. And how in the world
does she do that?

But, anyway, I'm an Air Force veteran as
well. I was born and raised on Air Force bases. I
moved here to Boise when my dad retired from the Air
Force, and have lived out in southwest Boise here off
of Cole -- Cole and Desert.

I've been out here for -- since 1974, and so
I've seen all of this growth in the Valley and that
kind of thing. And I tell you, I'm excited about the
F-35 coming to Boise. If it does, I'll be very
excited by it (applause).

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: We can't hear you.

MR. GEMPLER: I live in the flight pattern,

if you will. I live -- we just sold our house ocut
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here. We're waiting to close on another one Jjust off

of Cloverdale and Lake Hazel, and so I'm pretty
intimate with it.

I've lived on bases that have flown
everything from B-52s to F-15s. I've worked on F-15s
for years. I worked on F-4s out at the Guard here,
and I'm pretty intimate with the living conditions on
the base underneath that. 2And so I've got to thank
you guys for living in such substandard conditions.
how the -- see,

You know, I remind myself that --

COLONEL HARNEY: Just slow down, please.

MR. GEMPLER: Oh, I remind myself that these
pecple that come to work on these aircraft are going
to be our neighbors, and they're going to be dialed

into their little kids sleeping; and, frankly, I'd
change these 72 jets or whatever if they can just
keep the dog next door to me shut up.

You know, so I'm not concerned about the
noise levels. T understand that they're loud. I'we
worked around F-15s my -- for a decade or better.
And, you know, I understand that they're louder than
an F-15.

I also understand that they're not as loud
as an F-18 that we have come through here quite

frequently. And I will turn -- turn the mirror to
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the F-18s that come through here all of the time.
And so I don't think that it's something that's going
to seriously impact us.

You knew, I'm encouraged by the economic
impact. I'm encouraged by the —-- we've all seen our
housing values decrease dramatically, as they have
across the nation. Here is an opportunity to have an
economic impact cn Boise that we can't duplicate.

1'd hate to think about Micron leaving. And
we get worried every time they lay somebody off, but
here we have an opportunity to add something that's
Micron and bigger. And that's just the direct jobs,
let alone all of the ancillary jobs that become part
of that economic growth when you add 2500 jobs, and
all of that suppert that comes with that, and all of
the economy that's -- that's also -- that's alsc
going to become ancillary that supports the base, not
alone -- not just the actual jobs that would come
onto the base.

And so I'd encourage you to keep an open
mind about the F-35 and the installation that could
become part of ocur community, and encourage those
people to come. I think it will be a great thing for
us.

And I honestly -- yeah, they're going to be
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loud airplanes. Airplanes are loud. They're part of

our lives. I've lived underneath them over here for
30-odd -—- 38 years now. And -- I'm starting to get
older -- and I think it's a welcome enhancement to
our neighborhoods.

(Applause.)

COLONEL HARNEY: Thank you. Thank you very
much.

Come on up, sir.

Just a couple of things -- and it's kind of
flexible as we go along —-- what she does is kind of
amazing, but for her to get everything down, we need
to make sure that you're speaking so that she can do
that. So if you'd just slow down just a touch.

And then the cother note that was passed to
me is: "Can you please have everyone speak closer to
the microphone so all can hear?" So please speak
closer to the microphone so everybody can hear.

With that, Bob go ahead. And after Bob will
be Roy Bade.

3221 BO

MR. GRUENHAGE: TI'm Bob Gruenhage. I'm just

a resident. This is not the same Boise now as in

World War II. The population then was 35,000, and

DO-19
now we're over 200,000, with a metro area of 500,000,

and they plan to expand.
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Page 329
It's generally not the amount of planes that
are here, it's the amount of times they take off and
land and are in the air. And there's a big
difference between flying once a year and 30 times a
day in the noise level that, in fact -- that effects
And, also,

people. there's not just one plane taking

] NO-39

:l NO-69

off. Sometimes they go into groups and also fly
outside the contours that are shown in the map.

And, also, there's a safety issue. There's
a Marine Corps air station, Miramar, in S$San Diego,
that, in as recently as December 200 -- December 8th,
2008, four people were killed and two homes were
destroyed and three homes were damaged with an
F/A-18D. That was two miles from the air statiocn. SA-1
And there on August 12th, 1968, at the same
air station, there was another crash that didn't kill
anybody, but the population wasn't as high then. But
they say if it hit now, it would have been dangerous.
And besides those, there were other accidents there
that didn't affect pecple.

The F-35 initiative is a federal program, so
the economic benefits should be -- shouldn't have any
effect, because it takes the same amount of pecple to S0-13
run the facility as anybody, and -- and the -- so the

job -- long-term-job creation should ke the same, but
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the locations should make the big difference.
Thank you.
(Applause.)
COLONEL HARNEY: The next speaker would be
Roy B-A-D-E —--
MR. BADE: Thank you.
COLONEL HARNEY: -- followed by Renate,
R-E-N-A-T-E, Huebner.
I'm also a

MR. BADE: My name is Roy Bade.

Vietnam veteran. I want to thank you folks that are
still in the armed forces for what you do. I really
appreciate it.

As far as the aircraft goes, I don't know
that much about the F-35, other than the statistics
are pretty impressive. Considering the situation
around the world today, I'd like to see that we have
the best aircraft and the best trained men possible.

Short and sweet, personally I would welcome
F-35s here. I like the idea of compatibility with
the Mountain Home Air Force Base. If we have 24
craft here and the balance at Mountain Home, I think
that would be just a superb combination. It would
keep some of the issues as far as noise down.
Instead of having multiple aircraft here you'd be

limited to the 24.
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Page 41
And just, plain and simple, the bottomline
is I look out for the guys that are flying for us teo
protect us, and I think it just would be -- enhance
us to have a portion here and the balance at Mountain
Home Air Force Base. And that's it.
Thank you.
(Applause.)
COLONEL HARNEY: After our next speaker will
be Kevin Cahill.
Come con up, ma'am.

MS. HUEBNER: 3223 BO

Hello. My name is Renate
Huebner, H-U-E-B-N-E-R.

I live about two miles from here, and I am
impacted by airplane noise. And with all due respect
to the military personnel -- I thank you for what
you're doing in your mission -- but the F-35 has no
place in Boise.

It is too close to the airport, too close to

GE-1

the taking off and landing. And to hear these

aircrafts flying over my house, it is unbelievably

noisy. And I would hope that the Air Force would

please consider a different location for the F-35.

Thank you very much.
(Applause.)

COLONEL HARNEY: Thank you for your
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comments, ma'am.

Kevin Cahill.
Chuck Thomas (laughter).
MR. CAHILL: Hi. My name is Kevin E.

Cahill, C-A-H-T-L-L. T have a bachelor's degree in

math and economics from Rutgers College,
I have a master's degree in economics from Boston
College. And I have a Ph.D.
College.

I live in Bolse. 1I've been here for two
years now. And some citizens of Boise asked me if T
could review this document as it pertains to
And so I

socioeconomic impact. did.

Before I make my comments, I just want to
say that I have nothing but the most respect for the
military and for people who serve in the military.

But this report —— if this were my work, and I were

to present this at an academic conference, I would be

laughed out of the room,
(applause) . It's awful.
So what exists in the report is

fundamentally flawed. And I'll just give one

example. A lot of -- one of the claim s is the
number of jobs that will be brought -- be brought to
Boise. And that is not an analysis. It's an

And after Mr. Cahill will be

with honors.

in economics from Boston

and I'd probably lose my job
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assumption.

The Air Force assumes that 2,000 peocple will
be hired. They do some silly analysis to do scme
residual employment, and they say the magic number is
2500. The reason it's fundamentally flawed is there
is no analysis of negative impact. It's all just

jobs being hired by the Air Force, but, obviously,
the economy is going to be impacted negatively in
some way.

So the -- the Air Force is not providing a
net impact number. They're just providing a

positive, which is silly. Again, I could never get

away with that (laughter).

The other statistic that's being floated is
the number of people impacted. And the Air Force
claims that there's only going to be 10,000 people
impacted, but that assumes that anyone subjected to
noise lower than 65 dB DNLs has no impact.

So if someocone is subjected to 65 dB DNLs,
they're counted in their analysis, but if you've got

to be subjected to €4.9, it's 0. So, you know,

that's where they get the 10,000 number. That's not
the number of pecple impacted. That's just the
number of people subjected to the 65 number that

they're using as their cutoff.
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Any economist would consider a gradual

impact of noise, not this zerc-one cutoff. And then
the biggest flaw -- and I'1ll try teo do this in 30
seconds -- is what's not shown in the report, not
what is in the report.

There's no impact on quality of life, and
economists routinely assess quality of life by asking
pecople. You go to places where this noise exists,
and you ask people what it's like, and that's how you
get assessments of quality of life. And there's
nothing like this in this repecrt.

There's also no real-world analysis pre/post
using existing data by the Bureau of Labor Statistics
or the U.S.

Census. There is nothing in this report.

And, again, no serious econcmist could get away with
a report that's missing those two things.
That's my comment. I would like to say that
I wrote an expert report in this matter, and it's
available at Saveocurwvalleynow.org. Anyone can read
it. 1It's posted.
(Applause.)
COLONEL HARNEY: So Mr. Chuck Thomas --

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Go Chuck (laughter).

COLONEL HARNEY: -- followed by -- followed

by Peter Jenny.
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(Everyone talking.)
MR. CHUCK THOMAS: My name is Chuck Thomas.
I'm a board member of the (inaudible) —-
MS. TURNER: Hang on so she can hear you.
Thank you.

MR. CHUCK THOMAS: T-H-O-M-A-5. I'm cne of
the folks that went through the last hearing process
where we completely debunked all of the facts and
figures that we were presented with, most of which
were -- we were told they had no idea what the noise

levels were.

We took a lot of time -- Monty Mericle,
myself, and others -- to find out what the levels
were. You can go on the internet, you can find them

out yourself. Rest assured, the only way we can
address —-- these figures we're given now are
deceptive, deception.

This is a bad deal for this community. I'm
I love aircraft,

a has-been pilot. airplanes,

anything tc do with them, but I know where I live,
off of Overland and Maple Grove here, my home would

be rendered as unlivable. And in past cases, people
have gotten as much as $14,000 in compensation for
the loss of their home (laughter).

In dealing with the government over the last
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30 years, in trying to impose some ethics reform,
there's not much room feor politicians and ethics in
the same room (laughter). It's like -- they're like
diapers, you need to change them often.
In regards to this, if this thing is shoved
down our throat without any due recourse, like
Monty's not allowed to show his noise impact chart,
which is legitimate, unlike the ones we've been
given -- this is a railroad Jjob, not the kind of
thing you should expect in this country -- can make
one sincere promise. If you trash thousands of
pecple's homes in this valley, I can promise you a
major class-action lawsuit will go after all of the
political cronies and the lobbyists who brought this
operation back here to Boise. That's a promise. We
will have no other recourse.

I love the military. I love what they're
doing. I'm one of the most patrictic people you'll
ever meet, but wrong 1s wrong and right is right, and
what's going on here tonight is wrong. I grew up in
Holloman Air Force Base —-- next to it in Alamogordo.
there is the location.

Now, It's 14, 15

miles -- yeah, 30 seconds -- 14, 15 miles from the

air base. It's right next to White Sands Missile

Range, and just a skip from Fort Bliss and the
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missile range out there. There is where it belongs.
Those are the peocple that want this operation.

Don't listen to your political cronies
around here and the lebbyists with the
construction/real estate industry that are sucking
them in here. Dec what you know is right.
Thank you.
(Applause.)
MR. JENNY:

Good evening. My name is Peter

Jenny, J-E-N-N-Y. I'm president and CEC of a
conservation group called The Peregrine Fund and The
World Center for Birds of Prey. We're located 3.6
statute miles directly scuth of the airport.

At this facility we raise endangered and
threatened birds of prey from around the world. Most
notably, we currently maintain one-third of the
world's population of California Condors, a
critically endangered species. The Condor and other
endangered species we're working with are extremely
sensitive to noise and wvisual disturbance, so we are,
justifiably, very concerned about this proposed
activity.
current civil and

However, having said that,

military aviation activities have not, to this point,

negatively impacted our facility. What we're really
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Page 48
concerned about -- and this is a huge unknown for
me —— is how much more impact this will represent. BI-19
And reading the EIS I was not clear on the o
differential there.
So I just want to go on record as saying
that we're certainly concerned, and we would
appreciate your sensitivity to this concern that we
have.
Thank you.
(Applause.)
COLONEL HARNEY: So our next speaker will be
Stephen Purdy, followed by Diane Roberts.

3227 BO

MR. PURDY: P-U-R-D-Y.

Steve is my name. I'm a 25-year firefighter
who's retired. I spent my last nine years at the
airport as a crash fire rescue captain. My hat's off
to every active military and all of the past vets
that have done this great service.

I think the guesticn here is: Do we want
Beise to be an airport town? Do we want to change

our name to Mountain Home, say? The quality of life

NO-36

will suffer. The bureaucrats that we're dealing with
-- and I was a bureaucrat -- will tend to want to
prove their point. Not that they'wve cheated or

skewed the number s, but I think there's some
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evidence that I heard tonight that they've done that.
The jcbs are estimate only. 2188 to 2635,
estimate only it said. 10 million to 26 millicn

increase. But, you know, I think after we've made
this an airport town, we have F-35s taking on and
off, I don't think we're going to read an article in
MONEY Magazine or Businessweek that's increased and
gave us a higher rating of a livable city, where
we're golng to draw in larger businesses over a
period of time and establish -- we're already
attracting people because we are rated so high for
the guality of life. I think you're going to find,
when you're having the noise levels that will come
with this, guaranteed, that will change.

Where they're doing all of these studies
with the dBs -- I measured the dB when we were all
talking. It was 20. If you look at the way dBs
work, when you get up to around 60, it's thousands --
I don't know the exact numbers, but it's much louder
than just what -- when we were trying to talk back
and forth.

The F-15s last summer were the example
that -- that's all the example we need. They were
too loud. Sitting in the house talking on the

telephone when they take off, I was torn between
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trying to figure my phone -- or finish my phone

conversation or run out and lcok at them, because T

love aircraft. But that's not the pecint.

Let's see. Is the location suitable? 1It's

not. I mean, there's no -- you know, you can do all

of the studies you want, try to convince us with
smoke and mirrors; this is not the place to put this.

Safety and training -- I've got 30 seconds.
Training is the most likely for an incident, single
engine increases that. I don't know what the glide

ratio on a single engine jet is, but it's not very

far. And -- huh?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: It will fall like a
rock.

MR. PURDY: Yeah, fall like a rock. So the
sound of freedom, the scund of safety -- when we
build a fire station —-- everybody loves us until we
build a fire station in your block (laughter); then

they don't like us so much. So if you want the sound

of freedom and the sound of safety, we'll run our

fire truck up and down your street. You'll love it

(laughter) .
(Applause.)
MS. ROBERTS: My name is Diane Roberts,

R-0-B-E-R-T-S. I live in a place where every morning
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I can tell when the planes start firing up, and the

first ones take off, and this is at 7:00 in the

morning, and it's not pleasant, but it's an

interesting way to wake up.
But I don't want to wake up to F-35s getting

their groove on (laughter), so to speak, every

morning, and the jet pilots that are flying them

getting their grcove on. I don't want to hear that.

The quality of life in Boise 1is why I live here.

I grew up in Idaho. I grew up in Heyburn.

I've been lied to before by the government about

various things, like Big Mike, nuclear testing,

Nevada desert, any of those things, INEL. I've lived

here and heard it and been on the deserts and been in
the mountains and been camping at night when the

stars were up there. I love Idaho. I do not want

ik,
And this place -- they talk about the jobs

that are coming. How many people are going to move

away because of the scund? This is a contained

valley. The mountains -- it will ring off of the

mountains, all of that, so I hear it. And not only

that, but the whele valley will be affected by this.

As an Idahoan, born and bred in Burley,

Heyburn, farm girl, taking potatoes out, I want a
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good quality for us, and it does not include F-35s
going off with a bunch of jocks gunning them. I
drove a '56 Chevy, and I know the temptation
(laughter) .

So thank you.

(Applause.)

COLONEL HARNEY: Thank you for your
comments, ma'am.

The next speaker is Dan Buerstetta,
B-U-E-R-5-T-E-T-T-A, followed by Bernard Schur,

MR. BUERSTETTA: My name is Dan Buerstetta,
B-U-E-R-S-T-E-T-T-A. I'm an ex-airborne paratrooper.
I've jumped out of more planes than most of you would
think would be sane, and flown in almost all of the

other kind of aircraft, save for a jet. And, guys,

give me the call, and I'll be there in the cockpit
with you.

I have hearing lcoss as a result of being in
the military. I don't like loud noises. I think
this aircraft will be problematic for even people who
don't have hearing issues, to begin with.

You know there's an issue when the
parameters for discussing this are expressed in
percentages of people that will be woken up from a

dead sleep with their windows closed, numbers like
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16 percent and 33 percent.
T want to just step back and say,
the end of tne discussion? Where does cormon sense

prevail? I mcan, this is so highly inappropriate for

this community it's to the pcint of ebsurd. -f this

ware the cnly place i the wecrld, or in America, that
w2 could accomplish tk:s mission, we could rethink
it.

We could all move cut cf Beoise and _et them
do it here, but I thirk there are more feasible
alternztives that make more sense where we can get
the job dcne and not regatively impact so many
pecple.

For every three pecple that get a Jjob, ter

people in -- for the gentleman with & 2h.D., perhaps,

it's a small multipls -- will be inconvenienced by
it. I think it's a fa_se eccnomy to say we're going
to make a lot oI monsy on these incoming joks.

I live in a neighbcrhocd of verv expensive
homes. Those homes are golng Lo diminish
dramatically. Tax =2venues will plummet. Good
companies that have come to cities for guality cf
life -- and that's a high consideration for good
companies. It's got to ke a neat plece to live,

bscause these are high_y educated people, and they're

isn't trat |
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not going to move to a place that's super noisy. So
that's another negative impact on this formula for
valuing the presence of this program in this town.

I kind of question whether when wildlife
look

comes to a screaming halt, per the statistics,

up, go into an alarm mode, that ultimately they
become habituated to this kind of alarming noise
presence, even though that's what this study
contends. I don't think anybody can learn to tune

out a sonic boom. I wish I could, maybe I wouldn't
be up here talking.

The sheer numbers that they're proposing, 24
aircraft minimum F-35s up to 72 with multiple sorties
nurseries,

day and night. The impact to businesses,

elementary schools, high schools. The stress factor

involved, I don't think, has been given enough
credence here. You do not continue to function as a
healthy human being or as a society when you're
constantly being intermittently stressed.

I would encourage everyone to tell as many
people as they can about this. 8o many people in my
neighborhood are not aware of it. Use whatever means
possible to communicate. Write the newspaper.
What's the -- I say young people -- but the email,

Faceboock, get the word cut. I think when people know
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the facts, they'll all be in line to stand up here

and speak against this.
Thank you.
(Applause.)
COLCONEL HARNEY:

Bernard Schur, S5-C-H-U-R.

MR. SCHUR: Schur.

COLONEL HARNEY: Schur.

MR. SCHUR: Like S-U-R-E.

I'm Bernard Schur, S-C-H-U-R. I'm also a

Vietnam vet. It took me two years to get over

hearing helicopters land; I don't know how long it's

1]

going to take me to get over F-35

I'm concerned about one element that was not
contained in this report and nobody yet has addressed
it, the 10,000 kids between birth and 18 years old
going to be subjected to decibels, not at 65, but at
100 and 125, and even more for afterburners.

I'm concerned about the people who have been
left out of this,

the people in Kuna, and especially

for Meridian. I came here to represent the young

idian.

H

children and the pecple of Me
Meridian will not get any money out of this,

Meridian will not get any jobs, but it sure as heck

w

is going to get an awful lot of noise, sonic booms,

and a lot of nervous sleeping.

3230B0
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Now, there's not one person in here who N
hasn't woken up i1l and had a bad day at work because
they were feeling rotten. How are you going to feel NO-3

with a 110-decibel night when you get up to go to
work and your kids get up to go to school, and

they're all sick?

Now, from Monday, Tuesday, and Wednesday
last week, when they were landing those planes, my
little girl, who's five, sald, "Daddy, is there a
storm coming in? I can hear the thunder." And all
of those three nights she did not get a good night's
sleep, and she had to go toc her preschool, and she
was fidgety.

How many of your children and grandchildren
are going to be fidgety? And who's going to pay for
the hearing aids; not the government. Who's going to
pay for the Paxil for the parents to relax; not the
government (laughter). That's where the economy is
going to boom, at the drugstecre (laughter), and
that's not what we need.

This is not the climate, this is not the

] GE-4

—‘ GE-4

valley, this is not the place for F-35s. God bless

the military. Most of us here served in it, and we
appreciate it. And this is a fantastic plane. I

love this plane. I like the triumph series that it

=

10

[

12

N
N

N
w

e}
w

represents, three different services getting one
fantastic plane, but not here. Not here. And that's
what we have to tell the military.

And T think the fact that we are willing to
file a class-action suit against the Air Force, and
against Mayor Bieter, and against the city council
(applause) is the number one thing we have to tell
them. We will be before a federal judge and let him
decide whether or not this is a valid impact
statement.

And, besides, military people, you don't
want to live here, because you can't drive those
planes like a '65 Chevy. You're going to have to
tone them down, and that's very frustrating to a
pilot; I know, I've got some relatives. Hot gunning
is in.

And how are you going to stop coming over
Meridian? And Meridian has been left out of this. [

want Meridian in the impact statement, and I want

them tc appear at these hearings.

=

hank you.
(Applause.)
COLONEL HARNEY: OQur next speaker will be
Skip Nakashima, followed by Richard Kaylor.

MR. NAKASHIMA: Thank you.

GE-4
cont'd

GE-14

DO-38

3231 BO

Peterson Reporting, Videc & Litigation Services

Peterson Reporting, Video & Litigation Services

Z¢10¢ aunr

[eul



siduosuel] BulleaH 21jqnd — 1uswnoog asuodsay Juswwo) — g Xipuaddy

18¢-8'd

1uswalels 19edw| [elusawuoliAug Buiseg Bulurel] vse-H

10
24,
12
13
14
G
16
17
18
19
20
2L
22
23
24

25

N-A-K-A-S-H-I-M-A.

Thank you for coming. I want to start out
saying that I really support the F-35 program., The
only question I have 1s the C model for the Navy. I
don't know why they can't get by with a B model also.
And I can understand the need for the difference
between the A and the B.

A couple of things to address on this EIS,
though. One -- and Lieutenant Governor Little
alluded to that -- and they're talking about a
southern runway. That southern runway is located —-
or will be located south of Gowen Road and run
parallel to the existing strip.

The noise impact or footprint that they have
discussed and put out in the EIS does not show where
that runway is going to be. That puts -- that
broadens the footprint for the noise level and the
safety level,

We've kind of all heard about the noise
level thing tonight, so I den't want to beat on that,
except that I agree with it. And I've heard that the
noise level is four times that of the F-15, so that
will give you an idea there. But I agree they should

bring the F-35 in and let us see what it's like.

That idea of running the code around the
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Page
people who want the noise of the sound of safety,
well, that sounds like a good idea to me. Let a code
run go by 50 times a day around these people and see
if they like it.
The main concern I have, in addition to the

noise, since I live in the noise area, but has not
been addressed in the EIS -- I don't think it's been
adequately addressed -- is the safety level. I just
noticed in the paper today there was a letter to the
editor, and it said -- it talked about the schools
involved, but it alsc talks about the daycare
facilities involved.

But I wanted to mention and point out one of
the things that they don't address, the safety level.
And one of the other gentlemen here was talking about
we could "what i1f" the situation to death, and I
agree. You can what 1f it to death.

But we have -- on the departure, the west
departure and approach end of the strip of the
airport, we have Maple Grove Elementary School, we

have West Junior High School, we have Dehryl Dennis

and SA-1

educational schocl, we have Silver Sage School,
all of these people in close proximity.
We've had military aircraft crash already,

and all of these things are within there. And I
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said, if this goes down, this is a new plane and a
new training area training new pilots, if one of
those planes gces down and takes ocut an elementary
school like Maple Grove, what's that worth? That's
all I have to say.

This is the most populated area in the
state, and one of the things that they don't discuss
as an alternate, that I would have a question to --
number one, Mountain Home would be very good. The
other cone is Fallon Naval Air Station. They're now
having joint military bases, why don't they put it

there? The rangers and the MOAs are all within range

of it, just as well as Boise.
Thank you.
(Applause.)
MR. KAYLOR: My name is Richard Kaylor,

K-A-Y-1L-0O-R.
I'm an Army brat. I was born in the Panama

Canal. My dad graduated from West Point, and he

retired after 30 years. Looking at the Environmental
Impact Statement here, it's a little deceptive,
because it does not show these
65-decibel-day-night-level ranges.

I've read the B80-page executive summary at
with the

home, and it had three basic scenarios,
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largest up to 72 F-35As. However, looxing at the

hardout taday, it says, quote, "hasing 24 or 48
training aircraZt” -- which were the lower two
scecnarios -- "would not be cest cficctive."

12 this is trus, why dc you inc_ude thess
lower statements -- basing scenarios, other than to
l=2ad people tc believe that there's some scenarios
that are not as »nad.

What i3 ever more scary 13 wvou _oock in the
and it says, "deliveries could

hardout, quote,

possibly reach un to a total of 144 zircraft." So

that kind oz counles the proklem.
It's scary that 9,977 residents would be
affected by ncise levels greater than 65 decibels
day-night averags, and that is defined as not
suitable for resicential

use. 3¢ even though we'rs

talking akbout this morey coming in; what about all of
the property values that are going down?

Alsc, 313 people risk hearing loss. We need
Lo have a map ol Lhe avigallcn easemen.. An
avigation easement, which now currently is east of
Maple Grove Recad, says that you have no legal
recourse for airplans noise if ycu live in an
avigabion easement.

It says you can expect particles to ccme
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and that also it allows unlimited access to your —

the aircraft at any time, and you have no right.

it's too noisy outside because of the aircraft, go

go to the other side of your house."

hese areas, keeping rodents, particular ly

Page 62
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cont'd
People can come on who are associated with

LU-9

The Environmental Impact Statement says, "If

It says, "If it's too noisy inside your NO-56

Go —-- there's a great website, we heard

earlier. Savecurvalley.org has the map of

the noise level and alsc has a lot of information.

Thank you.
(Applause.)
COLONEL HARNEY: Our next speaker will be
DedJulis.
MR. DeJULIS: T don't need to. Everything I e
to say has been said.
COLONEL HARNEY: Okay, sir.
MR. DeJULIS: Thank you.

COLONEL HARNEY: How abcout Wendy

F-U-R-T-0-D-E [sic], and after Wendy will be Joe and

Casey Borman.

3234 B0
MS. FURTADO: It's Wendy F-U-R-T-A-D-0,

This will impact our owls, who very richly
BI-5

mice, at bay. They help the ranchers and farmers.

Each owl eats appreoximately two mice per

night. They're extremely fragile, requiring quiet.

These beautiful birds are so fragile that they will

not move, they will literally drop dead.

(Applause.)

COLONEL HARNEY: Joe and Casey Beorman, and

following them will be Adam Frickey.

MR. BORMAN: Good evening. I'm Joe Borman.
This is my special needs son, Casey Borman. We live
about a half mile directly west of here, and, as you

can see, Casey is not quite a normal child. He's 26

going on 2, basically.

And as we witnessed --

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: You have to talk in

the mic.

MR. BORMAN: -— as we witnessed a year and

half ago when the jets were here from Portland, I

only cover one set of ears at a time when we're

outside, and Casey is not intelligent enough toc cover

his own ears, so consequently -- and, you know, we
will no longer be able to have our windows open at
night or during the day.

MS. TURNER: Come closer to the mic.

MR. BORMAN: Closer to the mic.
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Turn it back down. I
think when you did that, it kind of shorted it out.
Pull it down towards you.

There you go. Maybe not,

MR. BORMAN: It seems like the closer I get
the worse it gets.

At any rate, we will, basically, need to
sell our house, and I'm anticipating that we will
probably get half the value or less for our house.
And, you know, I will not stay in a situation where
we have, you know, jets potentially, you know --
several times more jets than what we had a year and a
half agoe flying over our house. SO-1

Now, we're not inside the area that's
supposedly affected by this, but we will be affected
by it. And it's part of my responsibilities, because
I have a certified family home that I will no longer
And so,

be able to keep my son in such a situation.

I mean, it will have a direct economic impact on our

family.
And, you know, my hat goes off to the
military. You know, you people are the finest people

I know, bar none. I mean, the people who sat us back
there, you know, realized that we have a unique
situation, got chairs for us, and et cetera. My hat

goes off to all of you.

Page 65
But there are certain people -- and the
previous gentleman mentioned that the children in
this area will not be able to save themselves, so,
basically, we're going to be cutting off our own head
to save ourselves.
At any rate, thank you very much. And,
please, if you have any say over this, you know, help S0-1
the people that live in this area of town. It will
be unsuitable for living.
Thank you.
(Applause.)
MR. FRICKEY: Helloc my name is -- everycne 9236 BO
hear me all right? Good.
My name is Adam Frickey, F-R-I-C-K-E-Y. I'm

also a vet. I was with the 3rd Battalion, 7th

Marines, India Company. I1've been to Irag and

Afghanistan. Go -- c¢h, sorry. Slow down. I'm fast.

was —-— I've been everything from machine
gunner to an infantry squad leader. And, you know,
I've been exposed to a lot of loud noises, too. I
live right off of Vista and Federal Way, so right
next to the airport.

And I tell you -- slow down. Sorry -- I've

heard a lot of figures tonight. I've heard a lot of

things about ncise decibel levels. I've heard a lot
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of things about how much money this will bring to the

Valley. &And I don't know, I don't put much stock in
either of them.

I think that they're both rather -- I think
they both suit the needs of either case. But I tell
you what, if we don't have the F-35 here, the
Valley's going to be losing money. I think the F-35
is a good program. And these jets aren't flying

circles around neighborhoods. They're getting up and

out, and they're coming back. I guess that's pretty
much all T wanted to say. Yeah, I guess so
(laughter) .

Thanks.

(Applause.)

COLONEL HARNEY: OQkay. So as I mentioned

before, the hearing was scheduled to end at

eight o'clock, but we've -— and we've heard from
everyone who's signed up to speak, but we still have
some time left, about 20, 25 minutes or so.

So is there anyone whc's already -- is there
anyone who's already spcken that would like another
three minutes?

Mr. Mericle, come on up.

And then is there anyone after Mr. Mericle

who would like three more minutes?
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MR. MERICLE: 1I'll try to speak a little bit

slower this time. There's been a lot of information

and misinformation about noise, about dB level, and

it's not rocket science. This is a dB meter. You

can order it off of the internet for about $90. It's

three-tenths of 1 percent accurate.
You push the button, and it tells you what
the dB level is.

In this case, it's 47 dB in this

room right now. Okay. You can drive a truck

outside, I can get you a noise level. You can drive

the fire truck, you can drive anything you want. You
can fly an airplane, and this will give you the dB
level.

And so the fact that we've had three years,
and we're trying to get information on what's the
from most of the

loudness of the F-35, and I still,

people at the air base, get the story, well, we just

don't know; it's like, let's have somebody at Eglin

Air Force Base, where they fly these, go out, go
1,000 feet away from the planes, push the butten, and
you're able to get the loudness.

And the loudness is probably in the
neighborhood of 121 dB. And that's very level --

very high. At 125 is when it causes sound-induced
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pain in the ears. This is the -- the problem is this

is a battlefield weapon. And when it was specified,
there was nothing about loudness, about sound.

And so it's not scmething you can consider
when it's a battlefield weapon. You bring it to an
urban environment, and you've got incompatibility.
think that's one of the reasons that we've seen the
EIS slanted, so that in the whole EIS there's an
extremely small amount of information on the
It's called the maximum

loudness, the L max.

loudness of the F-35s.

You get -- you get DNLs, which is average.

It's like having one focot in boiling water, one foot
in ice water; on average you should be fine

(laughter). Give me the max. And we've asked for

that repeatedly. We've asked for some sort of an
independent Air Force supported project to do that,
and we've seen no response.

We've asked that the F-35s come in so we can
take our measurements.

hear it, We hear absolutely

nothing. We've had a British consultant who's come

in, done some measurements, it comes out to about 121
dB at takeoff.
We've had Robert Webb, who was an EIS Air

Force audiologist in Florida for his career to take

NO-37

NO-13

NP-3

Page

measurements. It comes in around 121 dB, which is

about two to three -- twoc to four times as loud as

the F-15s, which is the loudest things they fly out

here, but that doesn't have credibility because it's

not Air Force sanctioned.
And so that's what I'm trying to say is that

we are able to measure the loudness. I can tell you

how thing loud -- how loud things are. And so that's

what I wanted to get across.

There was another issue about the F-35s

coming in, taking off in the morning, and leaving and

then coming back. Now, this is a training facility,

and so they may be doing 14,000 takeoffs and landings

a year, but that will include 39,000 touch-and-go,
low-altitude flybys. It's in the EIS.

It's not us, it's a fellow that works for
SIA -- SAIC as a consultant, Bob Van Tassel, was --—
helped to put this together. So it's not opponents

or proponents making this up. This is what's coming

out of the EIS.

w

o the facts are there, we just need to get
them out and get them balanced so that we can get an
EIS that truly reflects both the positive and the

negative.

Thank you.
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Page 70
(Applause.)
COLONEL HARNEY: Mr.

Cahill, why don't you

come on up. We'll give you three more minutes. And

then we've had four other speakers sign up in the
interim, so we'll make sure everybody gets a chance.
We'll have enough time.

3224 BO

MR. CAHILL: Thanks a lot.

You know, there's a phrase in the -- not in

economics, but in other professions, which says that
the reason people go into econcmics is because
they're not smart enough tco go into physics. But
even an eccnomist like me, you know, saw this report
and noticed some glaring omissions.

And I just want to talk about one of them,
just to explain how a certain analysis can be very
informative, and it really doesn't take that much
work. And it certainly could be included in an EIS.

But the U.S. Census Bureau and the Bureau of
Labor Statistics each produced data on population,
employment, and, basically, most characteristics that
you would think of that are related to people.

And analyses that economists very commonly 50-23
do is you look at a city before a certain event took
place,

and then you look at that same city after the

event took place, and you look -- and you loock to see

what's different, and that way ycu cen measure, you

knaw, change ar impact associated with the given, yau
kncw, event.

Iind louc noisc is not something that has
naver been studisc bsfore. It's —-—- you know, thers
are pleces that nhave -- where loud noise has been
introduced. What thes Alir Force should do is go to
these kinds of places and go to the Census Bureau ard
go to the Bureau of Labor Statistics, download the
data, end look at what happened kefore and after, ard
then you can assess trhe impact on population and the
impact on employment.

What the Air Force's analysis is is purely
hypothetical. 1Ikt's given input for the number of

jobs, end then lock at what the cutcome is. There's
a whole series of analvses called comparables
analysis, where you take two different kinds of

cities, one city that was introduced to noise, and a
whole set of comoarable cities along different
characleristics which weren'lL Llalroduced Lo noise,

anc you leok at what happened betwesn “hose two sets
of cities.

that's all done with Census data

And, again,

anc Bureau of Labor 3Btatistics data. And it's all

going to ke dcwnlcadsd on any eccnomisz's hard drive.

Page 7
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So my peint is: There are analyses that are very

basic in economics which are completely ignored by

the Air Force's report.
S0-23

And for any analysis to be considered cont'd
suitable at a Ph.D.

level, you'd have to do something

like that. You couldn't pessibly rely on

hypotheticals alone. And that, I think, is cne of

the crucial flaws in the EIS.

I'11l say it one more time, I wrote an expert

report on this, and it's available at

Saveourvalleynow.org.
Thanks.
(Applause.)
COLONEL HARNEY:

Okay. Our next speaker

will be Brad Rowen, followed by Jeremiah Massey.

3237B0

MR. ROWEN: Thank you. My name is Brad

Rowen. I just wanted to address another issue. I'm
assuming that everybody's here due to the noise
ordinance -- or I should say, the noise concerns, in
general.

It's slightly off the tangent, but at the
same point, very few peocople know that there was an
ordinance that was passed recently -- in the last

administration with Ada County -- that allows

unlimited noise.

14
15
16
17
18
1.9

20

Page

The ordinance that is in place currently
does not have a decibel limit, and I just thought
that the people that were here would want to know
about something along these lines.

Because we've talked about the levels arcund
the airport and everything else, but in all of Ada
there is no

County, other than the ailrport area,

actual limit that is stated at this point, and very
few people know about that.

So I've gone through, and I've actually
established a website. 1It's not guite as good as
his, and it won't be up and running for another day
or so, but it's called Noisyinboise.com. I'm also
setting up something on Facebook, which will also be
Noisy in Boise.

And, basically, the concern is the fact that
there is no numerical decibel limits available right
now. What happens is if somebody is neighboring to
you and runs loud equipment, they can run it anytime

they want. And even if they're sited for it, they
can fight it in court.

And the problem that they're running into in
court -- and this has been issued several times over
-— it gets thrown out, because it's too subjective

and it is unconstitutionally wvague. And I know that
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Page 74
all of you people are here -- are here for noise
concerns, and there's an underlying problem, even

when this is all said and done, that says unless we

make a change on that, then anybody can still make as

much noise as possible.

And noise is detrimental to people's health,
NO-6
their wellbeing as well, and it's something that

needs to be addressed. It was something that

Commissioner Woods and Tilman and Yzaguirre passed

about three years ago. And I have more information

on it. So if you'd like to get some, I have some

packets on the way out.
Thank you so much for your time.

(Applause.)
3238 BO
MR. MASSEY: My name is Jeremiah Massey, and

this is my daughter, Elsie. M-A-5-S-E-Y. I live

close to the Jackson's at Orchard and the freeway.

And right now when we have some of these fighter jets

NO-12

flying, it rattles the house, rattles the windows.

I have hearing protection for my daughter
that when those do take off, she runs screaming,
covering her ears, and she grabs those hearing --
that hearing protecticn, because right now it's bad.

EJ-2

If these come in, she's probably going to

end up losing some of her hearing, and it's not

Page 7E

something that I want for my daaghter, it's not
something T want. for me, and it's not something T
want tor my wite.

I am a former wvet. I was over in Irag. I
was close to soms of the paladins over there, and I
have some hearing loss myself. It's just not
something I want to see. If these do end up coming
in, I'm already upside down cn my house, -'m going to
bz more upside down.

I can't move as it is, But I always wanted
to lonk out for my daughter. Prcbadly just end up
having to move, cut my losses and run. And I den't
wart tc see that happen to the area of people I liwve

with.

And there's a lot cf people Zhat do nct krow
about this. The information has not been passed
arcund. Cet the word out.

I've been putting sturt

on Facebeock; I've bezr putting stuiff on Twitter, I've
bzen telkxing to oeople I work with.

People don'L know. This velley is nol aware
of what they're trying to sheve down our throats and
what they're trying to put us threugh.

Thanks for your time.

(Applause. )

COLONEL HARNEY: Next we nheve G_en Stephers,

EJ-2

cont'd

S0-1
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Page 76
followed by Casey Loft.
MR. LOTT: Lott.

COLONEL HARNEY: Lott.

3239 BO

MR. STEPHENS: Glen Stephens,

S-T-E-P-H-E-N-S. I'm a Vietnam veteran. I served 20
years in the Air Force as a civil engineer, and I did
a four-year term in the pentagen. And my job was to
go to places like this and tell people that you've
got to get proper zoning around the airports so that
we don't have to close Air Force bases like Lowry Air
Force Base in Denver and McClellan in California.

When you get encrocachment, airplanes can't
fly, too much complaint from the people that live
there, and it's just not a healthy thing. So I'wve
been on both sides of this problem.

After T retired from the Air Force, I became
the planning and zoning administrator for Ada County,
and it was my job, then, toc try to protect the
development arcund the airport, and I represented the
county commissioners cn the airport planning
commission for three years.

And when the F-4 was assigned in the '80s,
the noise contcur at that time was at least a half a
mile wider than is shown on the current maps. And

NO-1
the F-4 is far quieter than the F-35, as much as we

14
35
16
17
18
7.5

20

Page 77

know about it. We really don't know. _JNOJ

t'd

So one of the things I did while I was at -
Ada County was I wrcte all of the ordinances for the
beginning of the air quality program to get all of
our vehicles tested. BAnd last year we had several
days that we were right at the limit of being
declared a ncnattainment area.

And the added noise, the emissions that get
put into our air could be just enough to push us AQ-3
over, and then we've got a whole new list of things
that we have to do. 3So it was kind of brushed aside

in the study, and I think that that's something that

needs further study.

And the last thing I'll say is we've spent
millions of dollars to build a concrete canyon all of
the way along the interstate highway over here back
by the airport, and then we want to go right across
the rcad and put in an F-35 that makes far more noise
than the road traffic, and, yet, we spent millions of
dellars to do that. And it just seems like we're
having one government program cancel ancther. So
think about it.

(Applause.)

3240 BO

MR. LOTT: My name is Casey Lott -- can you

hear me in back? I have a pretty loud voice --
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L-0-T-T. I'm a wildlife biclogist. 1I've published

papers in peer-reviewed journals. I evaluate
environmental impact statements on a number of
issues.

And you can always tell where the biggest
lie is by looking at the biggest color map. And the
one that you're —— you've seen tonight is the one
about decibel levels.

A1l right. I'm going to do

something that is kind of unpleasant, so cover your

ears.

(Screaming.) Now, that decibel meter

running for 24 hours in this roocm is not going to

detect that yell, yet all of you wish it didn't

happen. That's the joke here. Average decibel

levels over a Z24-hour period is not what you want to
measure.
What & noise everyone in this room —-- what

everyone has complained about, you know, the windows

rattling in the house, the kids running to grab the

NO-24

ear protection, NO-81

that's from acute periodic
disturbance.

And that is what affects humans. That is
what affects wildlife. That is what raises stress

levels. That is what decreases fitness. That is

what decreases quality of life. That is what causes

=

10

[

12

N
N

N
w

e}
w

human health problems.
Econemic analysis? Where's the economic
analysis of human health problems that come with this
EIS? Where's the economic analysis of increasing
emissions so much in this wvalley that kids have more
asthma in

this valley? Where's the economic analysis

of losing federal funding for highways here, losing
the jobs that come with that federal funding?

It's not -- it's the net.
we want to look at here. You know, where's the
analysis of how this is going to affect antelope
elk herds?

herds, Quality of life in this valley is

hunting. Quality of life around Boise is hunting.
Quality of life is being able to drive to many

locations within three hours of here and be in the

wilderness.

To me, this is not worth it, and it's kind
of a joke. And that's all I have to say.
(Applause.)

COLONEL HARNEY: I have another speaker who
wanted an additional three minutes.
MR. PURDY: My wife says I have a lot of

words (laughter). Who's the first guy that talked

tonight?

COURT REPORTER: Actually, I need you to

It's the net that

Page 79

NO-24
J NO-81
cont'd

S0-40

S0-13

| 1L

BI-5

NO-36
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identify yourself.

MR. PURDY: Huh?

COURT REPORTER: I need you to identify
yourself again.

MR. PURDY: Oh, Stephen Purdy.

COURT REPORTER: Thank you.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Can you use the
microphone?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: The Little guy.

3227 B0

MR. PURDY: Is he still here? I didn't
think so —-

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: They lie and leave.

MR. PURDY: -- because they don't care about
what we're saying.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: He had dinner with
Otter.

MR. PURDY: Huh?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: He had dinner with
Otter coming up sc he had to leave. _

MR. PURDY: Yeah. 1 just want to know who's
going to make the final judgment? Who are we trying NP-1
to prove this to? Are we just preaching to the -
choir? And the few that aren't —— you know, that
have the freedom to speak that they do want -- who is NP-22
listening and how will we really, in the end, affect

2

25

anything?

T think thare's a lot of them educated
pacple that put up some really gcod points that neag
to be looked at, but I look around, &nd I sce the
guys from the Guard ard the Air Force, but I don't
sze anybody that really is gcing to change anvthing.
It's the politicians.

Tha F-35s will not bring long-term wvalue.
There will be, maybe, some immediate wvalue within the
first three tc Zive years of the building program,

but in the end, T thirk, like T was trying to pcint

out bestore, it's goin

o]

to downgrade our community.

Iti

Quality of life i1s going to go in the toilet
clear intec Meridian, like that one gentleman was
pointing cut. So why not work tcwards guality
industry that is non-roise prodicing, non -- more of
the high-teca stuft that -- we'wve attracted quite a
few psople and continue.

But iZ we bring this in, we become a

circus —— as far as nolse, ncl a clrcus as people,
It's only going te downgrade. 3Sc it's the
politicians -- state, city, and county —— that are

pushing this, and somehow we need to get the word out
to them that they're kind of a short lifespan,

politically speaking, f they do this zZo us.

Page £1

NP-22
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(Applause.)
COLONEL HARNEY: We have about four minutes
left. Mr.

Nakashima, would you like to finish us out

MR. NAKASHIMA: Thank you. I'm Skip

Nakashima. I just wanted to point out, there was one
of the things in the EIS that said if you lived
within the noise print, that you should upgrade the
interior of your house to decrease the noise
environment, and I was wondering if the Air Force
considered coming cut and putting or implementing
that upgrade into all of the homes who are located
within that noise print?

and I

Also, as -- I was listening to this,

was thinking about this, that south runway, the 22
departure and approach goes right over Senator
Risch's house (laughter). I wonder how that runway
will be used when the planes start flying, if they
do? So that's all. I was just wondering.
(Applause.)
COLONEL HARNEY:

211 right. It appears that

we have no remaining speakers. The Air Force
representatives will be available by the display
boards to discuss things with you. Thank you for

your time and interest in the F-35A Training Basing

Page B2
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EIS proposal.

And tonight is not the end of your

opportunity to participate in the review process.

Written comment sheets are available at the

registration table, and you may turn these sheets in
tonight or mail or fax them later. And the mailing
address is printed on the comment sheets.

The Air Force welcomes public comments in
writing at any time during the EIS process. To
receive timely consideration for the Final EIS, all
comments must be submitted by March 14th, 2012.
So the hearing is adjourned. Thank you.
(Whereupon, the proceedings concluded at

8:01 p.m.)
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Page 24
certainly say that, but you don't need to use up your
time repeating what they've said because it will
already be in the record.

And, finally, this isn't a
question-and-answer session. It's an opportunity for
you to put your views and comments on the record
about the proposal.

And then just one last comment, and I'll
probably say this again a couple of times, just speak
slowly so that the « reporter can get everything
down.

Questions you pose will become part of the
record and will be considered. After we're done with
the formal part of this hearing tonight, the Air
Force representatives will continue to be available
to discuss things with you.

So with that, I'll go ahead and call our
first speaker followed by the person afterwards.

The first speaker would be Thomas Coops, if
you want to come up, and he'd be followed by Lynn
Owen.

3241 BO

MR. COOPS: Good evening. Can you hear me?
didn't prepare a long statement. I have a
couple of ideas that I wanted to bring up. I'm happy

to have the opportunity to be -- have information

S6¢-8'd
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Page 25
given to me here this even ing about the noise level.
My experience with the Air Guard is that
they can fly as low as 500 feet over my home. I'm

one of the neighbors of Gowen Field. 1 live about

two miles from the end of the runway. And in the

past, the attitude is, we can fly that low if we want

Co.
Based on that training that they've given
me, I just want to say that I don't believe this is

going to be a lot of fun for me, and I expect my real

SO-1
estate value to plummet. And that's all I have to
say.

(Applause.) 3242 BO

MR. OWEN: Good evening. My name is Lynn

Owen, O-W-E-N. I have a few things I'd like to say.

It's kind of long, so I'm going to try to get through

it quickly.

I'd 1like to thank everybody for coming and
the presentation and the debate. I feel everyone
that resides in the Beoise and the surrounding areas

NO-11
will be impacted by the F-35s being flown in our

Due to the fact that we have a commercial

airport in our sphere with air traffic that fly AM3

directly over our area, as I speak, the pilots that

10

11

13

14

16

17

18

19

are being trained on the F-35s are now going to be
sharinc this airspacs with commercial and passenger
aircraft. That ccould cause a dangerocus situaticn for
the area residents.

1 belisve Lbe people lupacled by Lhis F-3E
proposal shoild have heen given proper written notice
-- I mean by mail, because I believe we live _n that
area -- of tais genera. plan, and the noise
simulation emittsc by the F-35s should have been on
tslevision or by flyovers in our neighborhoods, so we
couvld sctually hesar what they sound li<e -- the A-1Cs
dor't bother me. I love them. I wave at them every
day when they ussc to fly over -- so we can actually
hzar the noise creat=c in our Treasure Va_ley.

This would -- L believe this will have a
tremendous negative impact on our way of Life. 1
have resided hers in the Boise area for several
years, and my wife and I have enjoyed -“he peace and
quiet here. We decided, after many years of hard
work, that the Treasure Valley provided the ideal
place for us to live.

Pirst and foremost, we'd like to commend the
Armed Forces for their great and difficult task and
sacrifice tfor protecting all of America's tfreedcms
served in the U.S.

and our way of life. I, myselZ,

Page 26

AM-2
cont’d

NP-20

GE-2

NO-16
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Air Force in the late '50s and early '6é0s.

I was stationed in Norton Air Force Base in
San Bernardineo. It is no lcnger an Air Force base.
In the 1970s I owned a small, five-acre horse ranch
in the Nuevo, California area, a small ranching and
farming community of abcut 3500 people, located in
Riverside County, just eight miles southwest of March
Air Force Base. About the same distance our home is
located now from Gowen Field.

As the -- as the housing projects around
March Air Force Base expanded, the landing pattern
was moved further east, closer to my home, and, boy,
could these big B-52s create a lot of racket taking
off and landing. They vibrated my home, and the
noise destroyed my family's quality of life and
greatly diminished the property wvalues in our area.

The short term economic gain for the
Treasure Valley will result in little or no value
compared to the devastation caused by the homeowners so-t
that reside in this general plan area.

Okay. Thank you.

(Applause.) I do have a little bit more.
And I'm a real estate broker, and I've got a lot to
say.

COLONEL HARNEY: Okay. Thank you for your

—

[\S}

comments.
The next speaker will be Barbara Priest,
followed by Jeanne Wilscn.
3243 BO
MS. PRIEST: Hi. My name is Barbara Priest,
P-R-I-E-5-T. And I've lived down the street for
approximately 35 years, so I'm a newbie here. Most
of my neighbors have lived here 40, sometimes 50
years in this neighborhocd. We have loved it. We

have grown, we've taken care of our yards, we've done

everything, and now ncise.

I —— I don't —— I don't know how to explain
the noise that we hear on a regular basis. This
opportunity to come here and speak has given me --
not only for noise, but safety. No matter how safe
they say they are, there's not 100 percent fact that Sk

there will never be an accident. Just one accident

in this town will devastate us all.

And the air quality. The air quality in the
wintertime here is cutragecus. We don't have -- need
AQ-1
the added air quality -- terrible air quality in this
area in the wintertime that we already have.

Asking questions tonight only -- only made
me ask more questions and more questions on noise.
not only live in the 65 decibel, I work in the 65 NO-44

decibel, so I will have it 24 hours a day. And I'm

.6¢-8'd
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wondering where the government stands on the
workplace?

Are OSHA standards the same for takeoff and
landings in a 65 decibel for a teacher that works at
Owyhee Schcol, or a person that works at Norco
selling welding supplies? Do they need to wear ear

protection during the day while they're working?

Page 29

NO-44
cont'd
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This is not acceptable in our area. Thank
you. =

(Applause.)

MS. WILSON: My name is Jeanne Wilson,
W-I-L-S-0-N. I agree with all of the other speakers.

I'11 just keep this brief from a handout that my
neighbor -- neighbors handed out.

And what it says is: "Based on the Air
Force's Environmental Impact Statement, 72 F-35A
aircraft operating out of Boise would expose
6,958 acres of property to so much noise that the

area would be designated by FAA regulations 'not

suitable for residential use.'"
That just says everything about our property
values. We won't be able to give them away.
Thank you.
(Applause.)

COLONEL HARNEY: Our next speaker is Dean

S0-1

14

15

16

17

18

7.5

20

Page 30

Olmstead, followed by Kevin Merrell or Merrell.

MR. OLMSTEAD: My name is Dean Olmstead,
0-L-M-S-T-E-A-D. And my main cbjecticon to these is
the noise level. We live close to the flight path
now, and a ccuple of nights agc we had an A-10 go
over, and it was so loud that it drowned out every
noise in our kitchen. We couldn't hear anything.

Now, this is an A-10 that we have now. And

from what I understand, these A -- these F-35s are
going to be eight times as loud as the A-10s. I

can't even imagine what it will be like. It's just
beyond my imagination. And I think we should be =

given some information besides numbers as to what

this is going to be. -
So -- and that's -- that's all I've got to
say. Thank you.
(Applause.)
MR. MERRELL: I'm Kevin Merrell,
M-E-R-R-E-L-L.
Good evening. The F-35 Draft Environmental
Impact Statement contains disturbing news. Under the
72-jet scenario, the area designated by FRA
regulations as not suitable for residential use would

impact almost 7,000 acres and over 10,000 citizens.

That doesn't sound like the Boise I grew up

3245 B0

NO-8

NO-1

GE-2
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LU-6
NO-11
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in. It begs the questiocon, why even include Boise in

the basing option? A cecmparison table in the Draft
EIS reveals the other three sites experiencing
dramatically lower impacts than Boise.

The F-35 coming to Holloman Air Force Base,
for instance, would impact all of an additional three
people at 65 DNL levels. Speaking of the DNL
levels -- the story gets a little murky here -- the
noise contour map is based on a sleight of hand
called "day-night-level noise averaging," or DNL.

The map describes a 24-hour average of
normal sound levels and the 50 daily sorties of the
extremely loud F-35. It's kind of like inviting
someone who can't swim into a shallow lake with an
average depth of only four feet, but not telling him,

well, most of the lake is three-feet deep, why, there
are a number of places where it is ten-feet deep.

I like economist Kevin Cahill's deceptively
simple suggestion to study the experience of other
locations that have gone through a similar
experience. We'd quickly find ourselves studying the
experience of Valparaisc, Florida.

Unlike our elected officials in Boise, or
the -- who are quietly supporting the F-35, or the

elected officials in Tucson, Arizona, who are loudly
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supporting the F-35, the city fathers of Valparaiso
took the Air Feorce to court because the noise from
the F-35s from nearby Eglin Air Force Base was so

intrusive. While they didn't get the F-35s to stop

their overflights, they did win a reduction of the

number of jets, from 144 to 59.

Well, I have grown up thinking Boise has a
certain progressive attitude about it, marked by a

sense of community and a genuine commitment to

nurturing its ci Our city deserves better
than inviting three squadrons of extremely loud F-35s
to come here.

I would challenge our civic leaders to learn
about the Draft EIS and publicly respond to the
impacts that they find.
Thank you.
(Applause.)
COLONEL HARNEY: 1I'd like to commend all of
you for speaking slowly up until now, so keep it up.
Our next speaker is David Nelson, followed
by Monty Mericle.

MR. NELSON: My name is David Nelson,
N-E-L-S-0-N.

So I heard there was a rigorous screening

found potential sites, and Boise came up

GE-7

GE-4
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as one of them. And even after that process, I have

to ask: Who in their right mind would base these
jets here and ruin our community?
(Bpplause.)
The second thing I want to say is, in my

line of business, in home construction, you use the

right tool for the right job, and Boise is not the

right tool for this job. On top of that, we get tax =
revenue increases due to the economic activity from
this base -—- or the basing of these planes; however,
we do not hear about the economic decrease in our
home/land values, and even those numbers you can't
put an emotional value on it.

Who in their right mind would put these jets

here? i
Thank you.
(Applause.)
MR. MERICLE: Monty Mericle; M-0O-N-T-Y, last
name, M-E-R-I-C-L-E. I'm one of the spokespeople for

Saveourvalleynow.ocrg. And I've been a licensed
electrical engineer in the state of Idaho for 37
years.

And I'm going to speak louder than I should,
because I'm going to address deficiencies in the

Environmental Impact Statement. I want to try to get

DO-32
cont'd
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as much of it as I car on the record, because the

rzcord of decision, which i1s coming up this summer --
if they fcllow their process -- is going to be based,
in larce part, on a well balanced environmental
lmpacl s_alemenl. And whal we've gol su [ar _s nol
w2ll balanced. It has many deficiencies.
And here I co. The Draft F-35 Environmental

Impact Study for Boise, Luke, Tucson, Holloman Air
Force Training sites is sericusly Zlewed with errors,
and cannct De used as a basis

omissions, shcddy work,

for the rinal ELS or NEPA record oI decision.

There are toc many seriocus deficiencies tkat
must be addressed first, as cutlined in the list
bzlow of 11 items. I'm re —— I'm requesting an
indefinite stcppage or postpcnement of the NEPA
process until the deficiencies in the Draft EIS ars
correcied.

Ttem One -- and this is probably one of Lhe
two worst -— is thers are no definitive dB loudness
boundary maps,

studiss, or numbers published In ths

F-35 study. Terform them if you've no:z done them, or
publish them if ycu have.

At the -- as the off-site loudness has bsen
shown to cause hearing damage, it's essential that

the area maps show dB magnitude at all sensitive

Page
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locations. These measures or estimates already
exist, as they were required to develop the DNL :gf
measures, which are listed for all sensitive
locations.
What's missing? We've got averages. If you

put one foot in ice and one feoot in beoiling water, on
average, you should be ckay. We've got averages.
What we need are magnitudes.

This is a dB meter. You can buy this off of
the internet for about 90 bucks. It has three-tenths

of a percent of accuracy. If I walk outside, T can

measure the loudness of a car, of a fire engine, of
an F-35A, of a B-1, of an A-10.

That's what we need, is we need to have mapsm
that show the magnitude. That's what we're all
concerned about. DNL i1s something that we will find
out about if they come here. But everybody is aware I
of the loudness. An A-10 is cne-eighth as loud as an
F-35. The F-35 is twice as loud as the F-18s -- or
F-16s and the F-15s. .
Item Two.

The next item, Over 10,000

"not

residents will find their hcmes reclassified as
suitable for residential use" if the F-35s are

brought in. This will represent in millions of

dollars of lost property value. It's essential that 7

NO-4

NO-1

SO-1

SO0-2

—
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a full house by house appraisal and valuation be

done.

The next item. Over 1,000 residents will be |

exposed to very high noise levels due to the NO-11

unusually close proximity of residence -- residential

houses to the runway. 1,400 afterburner takeoffs and

landings will be required annually, according to the
EIS.

It's essential that a full noise study be NO-38
done of the afterburner noise situation. We talked
to the EIS project manager. He's not aware of
anything about afterburners.

The next item. 4 schools and 13 daycare
centers will be in very high DNL and noise magnitude
areas. What mitigations will be done to avoid EJ-1

deteriorating learning levels? This must be studied

in depth. I've got to four. I've got five more that

address --

(Applause.) This will be on our website.

COLONEL HARNEY: Next would be Richard

Rogers, followed by Chuck Thomas.

3249 BO

MR. ROGERS: My name is Richard Rogers,

R-0-G-E-R-5.
And I'm here to say that I'm in favor of

. . i ) . P . R GE-4
this project for the Luke Air Force Base in Arizona. :
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(Applause.)

I have spent about four or five hours
already viewing this impact statement, and I consider
it to be -- as usual, with most federal documents,
the information is there, but it's a son of a gun to
find.

Initially in the planning scoping meetings,
the city officials and concerned citizens brought up
19 issues. And I'll just pull out a page in here.
It doesn't matter what page number it is. But the
least -- documents that cost millions of dollars
could have at least referenced where the answers to NP3
those points are in this document instead of having
to look around for it.

As somebody said, well, we just do the
minimum required under the NEPA process.

Well, the

citizens of Boise deserve more than the minimum.

(Applause.)

The max in this document -- well, they're
maps. I'd expect to find something like that in
1921. People in this area that are going to be
impacted need to know specifically where the
boundaries are on the 65 decibel, or whatever number No-4

you want to put out there.

It appears to me, after looking on the

b
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computer at this, might not be in this, but after
coming here tonight -- I live in southeast Boise, and
it looks like most of Lakewood and maybe right on the
verge, Timberline High School. That should have been
a study point. Timberline houses thousand of kids.
Why wasn't that in there?

The other thing is I believe this project
requires a conditional use permit from the county.
And under the county permitting process, anybody
that's directly impacted in their land wvalues are to
be notified directly, not just in a public meeting
like this.

There's several hundred people out there --
thousands of people who probably don't even realize,
because they don't get involved, that their
property's going to get impacted on this.

The -- there's a value -- there's one point
in here there's —- there's a formula for calculating
lost property values. The least this report could
have done is come up with a rough estimate on lost
value per $100,000 property assessed value.

Thank you for your time.

(Applause.)

MR. THOMAS:

My name is Chuck Thomas,

T-H-O0-M-A-S.

NO-5

S0-13
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Before I forget, I wanted to bring up
something I think a lot of folks have maybe forgotten
about is I've got a couple cf sons that are engineers

out at Micron. They brought up something to me today

that T hadn't thought about, is the manufacturing

process cut there at Micron is very, very sensitive.
The wvibrations from these aircraft are going to NO-61
severely impact the manufacture of these wafers out
there. So this 1s something -- another thing to

throw into the mix.

First, I want to make it clear, too, that
over the last few hearings in 2010, and these here,
there's been some question about the patriotism of
those of us who oppose this move of F-35s here. That
is not the case. We are very patriotic folks, and
we'd like to really thank Geod for our troops who
honor their cath of office, unlike so many of our
officials —--

(Applause.)

During the previous -- 2010 and these
hearings, we've provided, through our research,
significant noise studies on these F-35s that are in NP-32
major conflict with the folk s that were paid by the

government to make them sound acceptable.

This is pretty typical with government these
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days. You know, if our public servants did the same,
you know, in honcring their cath of office, we
wouldn't be here tonight, and our nation wouldn't be
facing economic collapse. It's just the way it is.

We need to take care of our business with our
officials and do our enforcement job.

Basically, here, you know, Monty Mericle has
furnished a lot of information on this through the
Save Our Valley Now website. I would encourage you
folks to go there and get your information.

Why the feds, you know, restrict our actions
and our public lands and our economy by not allowing
us to access our minerals, and then they're allowed
to bring in the F-35s.

And we're on the verge of pollution a lot
here, of having cur -- of -- you know, exceeding air
standards. Why they could bring the F-35s inteo our AQ-3
city and pcop in our air standards (laughter), it's

another confusing issue.

And I'd encourage you folks to follow up on ]
this. &And one thing is for certain, I can promise

you all: If they are foolish enough -- if our

officials are foolish enough, and the contractors and CE

developers that wag their tails in this state, if

they bring this in here, we will file a major
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class-action lawsuit (applause) against all S—

cont'd
concerned.

This will be financially unprocfitable.
Thank you wvery much.
(Bpplause.)
COLONEL HARNEY: Our next speaker is Ray
Dupree, followed by Pritchard White.

3251 BO

MR. DUPREE: Thank you. My name is Ray

Dupree, D-U-P-R-E-E. And, folks, I'm a former Marine
Corps pilot and a retired airline pilot.

The Air Force has always been very good
friends with the City of Boise, and I expect them to
continue to be very good friends of the City of
Boise. I'm one of the few here tonight that strongly
do support the fact that the F-35 may come into the GE-3
Boise area.

I'd like to mention that there are dozens of
dual-core —— dual-use airports throughout the United
States —-- Chicago, New Orleans, Houston -- where they
have military operating alongside major commercial
airline -- airlines with absclutely no problem
whatsoever.

Folks, the F-35 is fairly noisy. When I was
a young pilot for American Airlines, I flew the first
MDA into Orange County Alrport.

Orange County is

probably much more sensitive to noise than this area,

16
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surrounded by beautiful and expensive homes. And the
airlines developed a noise abatement program, where
we worked with the city over monitors -- sound
monitors making the people actually gquite happy with
the operation.

The F-35 is still being developed. There
are a lot of noise abatement programs that are going
to come to surface which are going to make the area
shrink down. It's net going to be nearly as noisy,
once it gets intc operation, as they -- as they say
it's going to be (laughter).

Folks, let me point out something to you.
You know, when we go to sleep at night, we're very
fortunate. Nobody's kicking in our doors, nobcdy's
bombing, nobody's strafing. Those things don't come
about by accident.

And I know you're all very patriotic here.
I know you all have reasons to have your own opinions
on this, but,

folks, the military has an operation in

force. They do a great job for us. And, folks, it
just can't always be somebody else's son, it can't
always be somebody's else daughter, and it can't
always be somebody else's city.

So I know it's going to be hard if this

comes in. Some of us are going to have to sacrifice
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more than cthers, but I think the area needs the F-35
in this area.

Thank you.

(Bpplause.)

MR. WHITE: My name is Pritchard White,
W-H-I-T-E. And I'm an accustical engineer who's
spent about the last -- more than 40 years dealing
with aircraft noise. I understand all of the terms
and words and models that have gone into this EIS,
and I find it's significantly lacking in several
areas related to the noise.

Those of you who have lived around here for
15 or more years can remember in the olden days when
the F-4s were here in town.

And they were not near

as noisy as the F-35. The F-35 is, you know, two to

four times as noisy. And there's going to be, maybe,
about ten times as many as there were F-4s.

Most recently you've been hearing the noise
of F-15s and -16s as they play in the sky around
that F-35 is a lot noisier than that,

here. Well,

and there's going to be a lot more of them. So that
just puts you in perspective of what you might be
and you hear

hearing. So if you've heard the F-4s,

the F-15s and -16s, you know what you've got coming

at you.

Page 43
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Now, Zinally, the -- the impact ana’ysis, as

far as I've been abls to read it, had very little ta

do witk the wildlife that live arcund here. Out

there in the areas at the end of the airport, thers's

dzer, Lhere's anlelope, Lhere's elk, all ol Lhal.

And w2 know for sure those animals do get spooked
when loud noises coma.

And it intsrferes with their breeding
patterns, it interferes with their life cvcle during

the wirter, in particular, when they're down Zow,

they're over near thz Boise River. And on the east

sicde, that's right -- right there where they take
off.

And on the Boise River, it's right where
they come in when they're coming from —he east. So

those will be making a lot of noise. It will be
bothering the wilclife there so that we may not have
as much of the deer and elk that we're used Lo and
that we'd like to have.

Finally, I did not find any decent eccnomic

QO
ol

alysis cf what it might cost tc Zix up the houses,

the busiresses, to the standards that --
to get the 63 DBA and the intericr levels brought

down to reasonable.

Now, at LAX —— they did this many years
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ago -- eilther they demolished the houses or they had
to spend millions and millions of dellars to pay the
houseowners and the businessowners to fix their
places so that they would be acoustically acceptable
on the inside.

And I don't find that number factored in.
It certainly is a big thing. If they don't do it,
And if they do do

the property values will go down.

it, we, as the taxpayers, are probably going to have
to pay for it.

Thank you.

(Applause.)

COLONEL HARNEY: Our next speaker is
Dan Buerstetta, and after Dan will be Janet Ward.
Either Ward or Wand -- Ward.

MR. BUERSTETTA: Dan Buerstetta,
B-U-E-R-S-T-E-T-T-A.

Sound is the one annoyance you can't hide
from. You can't pull down your shades. It follows
you everywhere. It ruins your enjoyment of the
outdoors and the indoors.

This is a flawed, misleading document full
I've

of omissions. I'm an airborne paratrooper.

jumped out of helicopters, prop planes, and even a

jet. I love aircraft. But even with wearing ear
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protection, I've lost some of my hearing. None of

the plznes 1'we oeen around my entire life are even
remotely as lcud as the F-35.

Thiz i3 ths most expensive —— $35 billion
and counting —=- pehind schedule, and over budgel
aircraft possibly in the world. TIt's certain’y

possibly the worla's loudest aircraft. 2And I say

"possibly, " because the military won't divulge

mzaningful, straightforward decikel daza, if they
even heve 1it.

I'he planes are in somewhat of & prototyps
phase, sc all of the data i1s rendersd somewhat
inaccurate. Perhaps it will be accuraze relative to
the finished product, but we don't know this at this
point in time.

All of the locations have requested
flyovers. I think ws ought to have & week long

flyover demonstration, so that we, Lthe citizens, can
judge with our own bui’t-in decikel me-ers what ths
experience will pe like.
This is a hyper-loud war pird that doesn't
bzlong in a densely populated urkan me-roplex.
Imagins you had an unoknoxious -- had an
obrioxiously ncisy car, which alsc happened to pollute

a lot, you desperately wanted to sell; it would
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behoove you to find a buyer who's gullible enough to
buy it without driving it, believe everything in the
misleading, full-of-omissions brochure, agree to a
nonrefundable, nonreturn, nc-agree-of-future
performance sale, and even accept the caveat that
they must live with this car until 2050. And the car
is a lot like Steven King's Christine. It starts up
in the middle of the night and makes you miserable.
But don't worry, 38 vears of misery averaged over 500
years is nothing (laughter and applause).

The DNL noise levels averaging sound out
over 24 hours is a commen means of measuring sound, NO-24
but it's impractical feor this. If I put a cherry
bomb next to your head and blow it up, but average it
out over five -- or, rather, 24 hours, I could say to
you: What are you complaining about? It meets the
24-hour standard, and it didn't exceed 65 decibels.
You have nothing to complain about. That's akin to
what we're being asked to do here.

The environmental impact of the F-35 will be

negative, not positive. It will create fewer

long-term Jjobs than insinuated. It will destroy ] NO-36
Boise's quality of life. It will pollute. It will ] gL
ruin our ace in the hole for attracting clean, ] SO-13
high-paying jobs. It will destroy our enjoyment of j Kiois

—
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river floats, hikes in the hills. NO-18
cont'd
The F-35 nocise, per this study, will
; ; 0% y ; i AQ-1
increase the carbon dioxide, monoxide, nitrous oxide, AQ-11
and contribute to cur burgeoning inversion. Home
values will yield diminished revenues to the tax —-- S0-1
to the city and county. When we use more -- thank
you.
(Applause.)
) 3254 BO
MS. WARD: I am -- I am Janet Ward, W-A-R-D.
It makes no sense at all to locate the F-35s
GE-4
here. And I am appalled that Owyhee School, —
Hillcrest, and West Junior High would be subject to
noise levels which cause hearing loss. On page 20 on
the Boise section, they said that West Junior High
would be subject to 98 decibels.
Now, I have taught at Mountain Home Air
Force Base. During the 1980s I taught a course out EJ-2
there for Boise State. When airplanes took off off
the runway, our building shook. 1I'd have to stop
lecturing for several minutes. We'd start up again,
another plane would take off, I'd have to stop
lecturing. It is not a good teaching environment. I
am appalled that we would do this to our children.
Cne of the other concerns is our air

AQ-3
quality. In Boise and the valley we already are
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borderline noncompliant for carbon monoxide, ozone,
particulates, and nitrous oxide.
If the F-35s are located here, we would

exceed nitrous oxide, we would exceed carbon

monoxide. And the price of noncompliance is
expensive. Boise City would end up paying a lot of
penalties, which brings up the city council position.
Last summer they endorsed this but said they
You

wanted to preserve neighborhcods. 2ll right.

can't have it both ways, city council. And I would
urge the city council to revise its position and not
support this ill-conceived basing of the F-35s.

Thank you.

(Applause.)

COLONEL HARNEY: The next speaker is
Gary Crowell, and he will be followed by
Thomas Berry.

MR. CROWELL: My name is Gary Crowell,
C-R-0-W-E-L-L.

Lots of the points that I had to make have
been very well covered tonight. 1I'm a residential
realtor. I want to reaffirm those points and talk
about quality of life in Beoise.

I'm a 58-year native. I've been around the

old planes, the new planes, and I live very close, at
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Cole and Victery, to the impact cf what we have right

now. And it's bearanle. And I kought the home
knocwing what I was buying.

Thiza i3 really trading it ouz to a much
bicyger noise level Lhen I bargained [or, and L will
he a further reductior in my property values. B2And
everybody that's impacted, and the ouilder who wants
to build more homes ir Boise -- it's going to impact
a lot more of Boise.

Boise's usua’lly finishing up in the tcp 1C,
20 cities for places to live in the United States. |1
dor.'t see this helpincg us. The whole city can ke

impacted ky it, nct just the people that are n ths
blte zone or cn the =cge of the klus zone or -n ths
pirk zone.

I think it's really a short-sided economic
gain, the number cof jocbs and the monev that come to
us. I think long-term can be offset much worse wilkh
property valuaes and other corporations that choose to
not come to 3cise and/or leave 3cise because of it.
Ancd the Micron issue is very, very realistic teo take
a lock at.
us to be -- remain

The other tking is to ask

vigilant about tnis. Because L can see so many

planes going into Luke Air Force Base, and a second

Page 50

50-1

SO-13
S0-18

Peterson Reporting, Video & Litigaticn Services

Peterson Reporting, Videc & Litigaticon Services

Z¢10¢ aunr

[eul



siduosuel] BuleaH 21jqnd — 1uswnoog asuodsay Juswwo) — g Xipuaddy

60€—8'd

1uswalels 19edw| [elusawuoliAug buiseg Bulurel] vse-4

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17

19
20
21
22
23

24

or third wave coming into Boise. I don't know how

that plan works, but I don't think we get to let our
guard down. Right now it's being proposed and
presented that they're probably heading to Luke, but
I think we get to stay wvigilant.

Thank you for all of your contributions.

(Applause.)

MR. BERRY: Thomas Berry, B-E-R-R-Y.

There's been a half dozen or so good
speakers ahead of me, so I -—- so to speak, scme of my
thunder may have been stolen like a loud air fighter,
but here I go.

For the record, I am opposed to the basing
of the F-35 of any configuration and any mission at
Boise Air Terminal Airport/Air Guard Station Gowen
Field.

It is my opinion the F-35 is incompatible
with the facility and is incompatible and unsuitable
for the surrounding residential, as well as,
commercial establishments

I find the draft impact statement lacking
and negligent. For example, the impact statement
shows the contour largely in line with the airstrips.
This as it does not show

is an incomplete disclosure,

the noise impact zone for the military landing
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pattern fcr an eastward apprcach, wiich is far south

over the subdivisions which include the intersections
of Lake Hazel and Maple Grove.
The nolsze contour purpcsely stops short at

Lhe compuler-modeled €65 declibel zone. There also

g |

seds to be contours for every three decibels withir

t

hat zone, as sound ircreases, as well as contours
for every three decibe_s outside that zone, as sound
diminishes.

Why three decibels? 3ecause every three

dacibzals equals a double in actual volume. Noise is

measurcble and can be specifically tergeted, scaled,
ancd quantified.

Real-time decibels need to be measured —-
excuse me -- real-time decibels need measured in all
takeoff and landing patterns for existing and
proposed runways and measured by a neucra_ contractor
agreed upcn by the Alr Force and the affected
r=2sidents and husinesses.

The results need ccmbined with a
docr-to-dcor census and survey of affected residents
ancd businesses. FProponents say Cowen has had a
military histcry since World War II. 2Proponents say
w2 usad ¢ have the b-4s as recently as '"Y9b6. This is

tree.
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However,

of houses, as well as schools, churches, and

businesses that are here now. If planning and zoning
had plans for future fighters toc be bedded at Gowen
Field, they never should have zoned the areas for
residential development.

(Applause.)

Proponents abdicate the sound of freedom.
Well, the sound of freedom is citizens gathered to
voice whether an aircraft is suited to their
environment.

(Applause.)

The sound of freedom is what we enjoy when
we come to our neighbors -- come home to our
neighbors and watch children play while we burn
backyard burgers or hang seascnal deccrations. The
rocar of the F-35 flying over our homes, businesses,
and city is not the sound of freedom.

It may be a reminder of the price of
freedom, and a significant population of the Treasure
Valley would be forced to pay a large burden of that
tax in their guality of life, property wvalues, and
health.

Lastly,

it's popular to announce whether you

are a veteran or not. It appears to add some

what wasn't here are the thousands
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GE-13

NO-36
S0-1
NO-6

credibility. come from a family of military

service. I'm a veteran of just short of ten years.

I am a veteran of Desert Storm and have shoveled us

out of the sand.

know the real meaning of rockets red
glare. I know what it is like to be woken up at
night. I've lived on and near naval air stations.

enjoy wearing my patriotism on my motorcycles,
helmets, and shirts.

I hope that establishes my credibility.
However,

you don't need to be a vet to be a patriot,

nor is it -- is this an issue of your patriotism.

And don't let others paint you into that corner.
This is an issue of quality of life, practicality,

and suitability. Bolse does not fit the model for
the F-35.
Thank you.
(Applause.)
COLONEL HARNEY: Our next speaker is Susan
Olson; and she will be followed by Kevin Cahill.

MS. OLSON: My name is Susan Olson,

0-L-5-0-N

A lot of what I -—- my thoughts have been
communicated this evening. One thing that hasn't
been mentioned is, as I understand it, with 72 -- if

skiing

GE-4
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72 planes are at Gowen, that would be 14 -- 14,000

sorties per year. That comes up to —- based on --

say, they fly 300 days, that's 46 flights a day. And

1400 cf those 14,000 are at night, with the

afterburners, et cetera.

We ought -- I feel myself to be as patriotic_
as anybody, but the sound of freedom has many rings.
And one of the things is -- is our quality of life.

And we all contribute in different ways to our
community and to our country,

but our quality of

life, our health, our wellbeing, and ocur peace of

mind are one of the things that each of us should

feel comfortable with.

And if our house values plummet putting some

pecple underwater -- and just the peace of mind and

the unsettling doesn't seem right. And our -

legislature seems to be, and our local government
seems to be very excited about future jcbs, but I
don't think they have put into the equation what we
have -- will lose: The companies that will not come
here, people that will leave.
And so there —— we may be a high-desert

town, but we are a city. We are not Holloman. We
We have

are not in -- out in the